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CONFIRMATION OF RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

27 March 2014 No 5-401 -4

Following Art. 21 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and the Rules for the Drawing up

and the Submission of Periodic and Additional Information approved by the Board of the Bank of
Lithuania, we, Saulius Bilys, General Manager and Rimantas Sukys, Financial Director of AB Amber Grid,
hereby confirm that to the best of our knowledge, the attached AB Amber Grid Company’s Financial
Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2013 Prepared According to International Financial
Reporting Standards as Adopted by the European Union, Presented together with Independent Auditor’s
Report presents a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position, profit or loss and cash
flows of AB Amber Grid Company, and AB Amber Grid Annual Report 2013 presents a true and fair
review of the business development and business activities, the Company’s status including the
description of the key risks and uncertainties.

General Manager Saulius Bilys

Financial Director Rimantas Sukys
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Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of AB Amber Grid

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Amber Grid AB, a public limited liability company registered in the
Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter “the Company™), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December
2013, the statement of inceme, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the 5 months period then
ended, and notes (comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information).

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting $Standards as adopted by the European Union, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary tc enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing as set forth by the International Federation of Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit afso includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified audit
opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

According to the Company’s accounting policy (Note 2.5 property, plant and equipment, which comprise LTL 1,582 million
as of 31 December 2013, is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The Company
estimates the recoverable value of property, plant and equipment whenever there is an indication that the property, plant
and equipment may be impaired. As described in Note 2.20 to the financial statements, the impairment test prepared by
management did not identify any need for impairment of property, plant and equipment. We believe that impairment
indications and impairment exist as of 31 December 2013, however we were not able to quantify its impact on the property,
plant and equipment balance due to significant assumptions invelved related to the changes in the gas sector and Regulatory
environment in coming years.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matter described in section Basis for Qualified Opinion abave,

the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of 31
December 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the 5 months period then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, we have read the accompanying Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2013 and have not noted any

material inconsistencies between the financial information included in it and the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013.

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company’s license No. 001335

Auditor’s licence
No. 000382

The audit was completed on & March 2014,



APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid

or. April 2014
AB AMBER GRID, company code 303090867, Savanoriy pr. 28, Vilnius, Lithuania
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statement of financial position
Notes As at 31 Asat 31
December July 2013
2013

ASSETS
A. Nen-current assets 1,583,740 1,576,673
1 Intangible assets 4 1,679 1,529
Il. Property, plant and equipment 5 1,581,582 1,574,672
1.1, Land 387 387
1.2. Buildings and structures 1,320,544 1,223,862
1.2.1 Buildings 27,898 27,202
1.2.2 Transmission networks and related

installations 1,271,669 1,175,708
i.2.3. Distribution networks and related

installations 379 383
1.2.4. Other buildings and structures 20,598 20,569
I.3. Machinery and equipment 230,417 225,882
1.4. Vehicles 5,172 4,996
11.5. Other equipment, tools and devices 13,845 11,359
11.6. Other property, plant and equipment 886 700
[.7. Construction in progress 10,331 107,486
1. Non-current financial assets 479 472
H.1. Investment into joint venture 1 479 472
B. Current assets 165,187 119,123
R Inventories and prepayments 26,862 26,995
1.1. Inventories 6 26,714 26,829
1.1.1. Raw materials, spare parts and other

inventories 4,541 5,744
.1.2. Natural gas 22,173 21,085
1.2. Prepayments 148 166
1. Accounts receivable 7 73,302 52,684
1.1, Trade receivables 16,169 8,302
1.2, Other receivables 57,133 44,382
. Prepaid income tax .
IV, Other current assets 8 45,305 27,302
V. Cash and cash equivalents 9 19,718 12,142
Total assets

1,748,927 1,695,796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

{cont’d on the next page)



APROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid

on. April 2014

AB AMBER GRID, company code 303090867, Savanoriy pr. 28, Vilnius, Lithuania

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

{all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statement of financial position {cont’d}

Notes As at 31 As at 31
December July 2013
2013
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
C. Equity 1,208,560 1,203,489
I Share capital 1 178,382 178,382
If. Reserves 10 1,015,111 1,015,111
1.1. Legal reserve 17,838 17,838
1.2, Other reserves 997,273 997,273
IR Retained earnings 15,067 9,996
D. Liabilities 540,367 492,307
I Non-current liabilities 374,872 392,271
1.1, Non-current borrowings 11 135,118 157,500
1.2, Grants (deferred revenue) 12 131,072 122,053
1.3. Non-current employee benefits 13 1,131 1,133
1.4. Deferred income tax liability 18 107,551 111,585
Il Current liabilities 165,495 100,036
.1 Current portion of non-current 11
borrowings 45,083 23,572

In.2. Current portion of employee benefits 13 260 -
Ih.3. Trade payables 14 12,673 8,528
I.4. Income tax payable 1,388 -
I1.5. Payroll related liahilities 2,224 1,129
I.6. Other payables and current liabilities 15 103,867 66,807
Total equity and liabilities 1,695,796

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager

Saulius Bilys

1,748,927

5 March 2014

Chief Accountant

Dzintra Tamuliené

5 March 2014




APROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid

AB AMBER GRID, company code 303090867, Savanoriy pr. 28, Vilnius, Lithuania
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

{all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

ori . April 2014

Income statement

Notes

. Revenue 16
1. Expenses
I.1.  Cost of natural gas
t.2.  Depreciation and amortization 4,5
11.3.  Payroll and related social security tax expenses
II.4.  Repair and technical maintenance expenses
II.5.  Taxes, other than income tax
I.L6.  Other expenses
. Profit from operations
V. Financial activity 17
V.1, Income
IV.2. Expense
V. Profit before tax
V1. Income tax 18
VI.1. Current period income tax
V1.2, Deferred income tax
VIL. Net profit

Basic and diluted earnings per share (LTL) 19

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Period of 5 months ended on
31 December 2013

74,101

(70,574)

(8,012)
(32,221)
{10,314)
(14,860)

(1,959)

(3,208)

3,527
{1,102)

63
(1,165)

2,425
2,646

{1,388)
4,034

5,071

General Manager Saulius Bilys

0.03

5 March 2014

4
Chief Accountant Dzintra Tamuliené %3

5 March 2014




APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid

on. April 2014
AB AMBER GRID, company code 303090867, Savanoriy pr. 28, Vilnius, Lithuania
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

{all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statement of comprehensive income

Period of 5 months

ended on 31
December 2013
. Net profit 5,071
Il. Total comprehensive income 5,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Saulius Bilys /@ 5 March 2014

-
Chief Accountant Dzintra Tamuliené %] 5 March 2014
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APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid

on. Aprl 2014
AB AMBER GRID, company code 303090867, Savanoriy pr, 28, Vilnius, Lithuania
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statement of changes in equity
Share Other Retained
capital Legalreserve reserves earnings Total
As at 31 July 2013 178,382 17,838 997,273 2,996 1,203,489
Total comprehensive
income - - - 5,071 5,071
Net profit for the year . - - 5,071 5,071
As at 31 December 2013 178,382 17,838 997,273 15,067 1,208,560
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these finan%
General Manager Saulius Bilys 5 March 2014
. . _— '
Chief Accountant Dzintra Tamuliené 5 Maich 2014
V=~




APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid
on. April 2014

AB AMBER GRID, company code 303030867, Savanoriy pr. 28, Vilnius, Lithuania

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{allamounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Statement of cash flows

Period of 5 months ended
on 31 December 2013

Notes
). Cash flows from {to) operating activities
.1. Net profit 5,071
Adjustments of non-cash items and other corrections:
I.2. Depreciation and amortisation 4,5 32,221
I.3. Loss on property, plant and equipment, doubtful trade accounts
receivable and inventories write-off and disposal 1
4. Impairment losses for property, plant and equipment, financial
assets, allowance for doubtful trade accounts receivable and
inventories {59)
I.5. Income tax (benefit) 18 (2,646)
1.6, Interest {(income} 17 (12)
I.7. Interest expenses 17 1,172
1.8. {Amortisation) of the grants (deferred revenue) (1, 428)
1.9. Elimination of other non-cash items 223
34,543
Changes in working capital:
1.10. Decrease in inventories 6 243
I.11. {Increase) in trade accounts receivable 7 (7,792)
1.12. {Increase) in other accounts receivable and prepayments (17,930}
1.13. Increase in trade accounts payable 4,004
[.14. Increase in other accounts payable and other current liabilities 38,155
I.15. {Increase) in other financial assets (18,002)
Total changes in working capital (1,322)
Net cash flows from operating activities 33,221
ll. Cash flows from (to) investing activities
.1, {Acquisition) of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets 4,5,20 (39,038)
I.2. Interest received 12
Net cash flows (to) investing activities (39,026)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

{cont’d on the next page)



APROVED

by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid

on. April 2014
AB AMBER GRID, company code 303090867, Savanoriy pr. 28, Vilnius, Lithuania
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
{all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statement of cash flows (cont‘d)
Notes Period of 5
months ended on
31 December 2013
1. Cash flows from (to} financing activities
li.1.  Loans {repaid) 11 {1,072)
.2.  Grants received 12,20 15,625
[1.3. Interest (paid) {1,172)
Net cash flows from {to) financing activities 13,381
v, Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 7,576
V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the year 12,142
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
year 19,718

The accompanying nctes are an integral part of these financial statements.
Saulius Bilys C@s March 2014

General Manager

-
Chief Accountant Dzintra Tamuliené 0@]

5 March 2014
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AB AMBER GRID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(alf amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements

General information

AB Amber Grid {(hereinafter the Company) is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of
Lithuania. The address of its registered office is as follows:

Savanoriai ave. 28,

LT = 03116, Vilnius,

Lithuania.

AB Amber Grid was incorporated by a decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos on 11
June 2013 following the requirements of the legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania to unbundle natural gas
transmission activities. The unbundling conditions of AB Lietuvos Dujos were approved and it was decided to
unbundle natural gas transmission activities with the assets, rights and obligations attributed thereto from AB
Lietuvos Dujos, which continue operations.

The Company was registered on 25 June 2013. Based on a statement of transfer and acceptance, the Company was
transferred the balances of assets, rights and obligations attributable to natural gas transmission activities as of 31
July 2013. As the unbundling is treated as a transaction under common control and the Company’s operation is a
continuation of the same activities while still within AB Lietuvos Dujos, all assets and liabilities so transferred were
initially recognised by the Company at the carrying amounts accounted for by the transferor (i.e. AB Lietuvos
Dujos) at the time of transfer. To the extent events and transactions occurred before the incorporation of the
Company, “the Company”, when used in relation to such events and transactions also refers to acts of the
transferor.

Following the incorporation of AB Amber Grid, the legal, organizational and fuctional natural gas transmission
unbundling was implemented. In order te fully comply with the Republic of Lithuania Law of Natural Gas
requirements in section 8, AB Amber Grid control unbundling must be implemented till 31 October 2014. Decisions
regarding control unbundling implementation will be made by shareholders.

Natural gas transmission is a licensed activity. The National Commission for Energy Control and Prices {hereinafter,
NCC) granted a license to the Company to engage in natural gas transmission activities from 1 August 2013. The
prices for transmission and distribution of natural gas are regulated. The price caps are set by NCC.

The Company actually operates since 1 August 2013. The financial statements reflects the 5 months period ending
31 December 2013. Any activity prior to 1 Agust 2013 was insignificant.

In connection with the performance of the activities of natural gas transmission system operator, the Company
provides the following services to the customers, other operators and gas market participants:

. natural gas transmission and transit via trunk gas pipelines;

. balancing natural gas transmission system;

« administration of the funds for the compensation of liquefied natural gas (hereinafter, LNG) terminal, its
infrastructure and connector installation and operation costs.

Clients of the Company are large (electricity, central heating, industrial) and medium Lithuanian business
enterprises, natural gas supply companies that are provided with natural gas transmission services.

11



AB AMBER GRID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

{(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

General information {cont’d)

As at 31 December 2013 the shareholders of the Company were as follows:

Number of shares Percentage of ownership
held (%)
E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH 69,416,233 38.9
0AQ Gazprom 66,112,761 37.1
Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania 31,575,724 17.7
Other shareholders 11,277,796 6.3
178,382,514 100.0

The share capital of the Company is LTL 178,382,514. All the shares of the Company are ordinary registered shares
with a par value of LTL 1 each and were fully paid as at 31 December 2013. The Company did not hold its own
shares. Starting from 1 August 2013 the Company's shares are traded at the stock exchange and are listed on the
secondary list of NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange.

The Company's investment into the company UAB GET Baltic jointly controlled with AB Lietuvos Dujos and the
Finnish gas company Gasum Oy is stated using the equity method in the Company’s financial statements. The
financial statements of UAB GET Baltic for the year ended 31 December 2013 were prepared in accordance with
the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Unian (hereinafter the EU).
During the 2013 the performance of joint venture was insignificant and was included in financial activities.

UAB GET Baltic data as at 31 December 2013:

Part of shares Current year
Address of controlled by (loss)
registered the Company attributable to
Company office (%) Share capital the Company Equity Main activity
UAB GET Baltic Aguony g. 24, 32 2,000 (161} 1,422 Licensed natural gas
Vitnius market operator —

arranges trading on
the Natural Gas
Exchange

The average number of employees of the Company was 347 in 2013.

The management of the Company approved these financial statements on 5 March 2014. The shareholders of

the Company have a statutory right to either approve these financial statements or not approve them and require
a new set of financial statements to be prepared.

Accounting principles

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Company’s financial statements for the year 2013 are as
follows:

2.1, Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRS), as adopted by the EU.

These financial statements are prepared based on a historical cost basis.

Numbers in tables may not add up due to rounding of individual amounts. Such rounding errors are insignificant in
these financial statements.

12



AB AMBER GRID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.1, Basis of preparation {(cont’d)

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRS and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {IFRIC)
jnterpretations

This financial year, the Company has adopted the following amendments to IFRS:

¢ Amendment to IAS 1 Financial Statement Presentation - Presentation of items of Other Comprehensive
Income. The amendments to IAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCl. ltems that could be
reclassified (or ‘recycied’) to profit or loss at a future point in time {for example, upon derecognition or
settlement) would be presented separately from items that will never be reclassified. The amendment
affects presentation only and has no impact on the Company’s financial position or performance because
the Company has no OCl element.

« Amendment to IAS 19 Employee Benefits. There are numerous amendments to IAS 19; they range from
fundamental changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expected returns on
plan assets to simple clarifications and re-wording. The change of employee benefits balance has no
significant influence on the financial statements of the Company.

¢ Amendment to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities. The amendment introduces common disclosure requirements. These disclosures would provide
users with information that is useful in evaluating the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. This amendment did not impact the financial statements of the Company,
because the Company does not have netting arrangements.

e IFRS 13 Fagir Value Measurement. The main reason of issuance of IFRS 13 is to reduce complexity and
improve consistency in application when measuring fair value. It does not change when an entity is
required to use fair value but, rather, provides guidance on how to measure fair value under IFRS when
fair value is required or permitted by IFRS. This implementation did not have a material impact on the
figures presented in the Company’s financial statements, but based on its requirements additional
information was disclosed {Note 2.19).

# FRIC 20 — Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine. This interpretation applies to
stripping costs incurred during the production phase of the mine surface mining {production stripping
costs). This interpretation had no impact on the Company's financial statements, as the Company is not
involved in mining activity.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Company has not applied the following IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that have been issued as of the date of
authorization of these financial statements for issue, but are not yet effective:

Amendment to JAS 19 Employee Benefits {effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2014).

The amendment address the accounting treatment for employee contributions to defined benefit plans. The
implementation of this amendment will not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
January2014).

As a result of the new standards IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 this standard was amended to contain accounting
and disclosure requirements for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares
separate financial statements. IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements requires an entity preparing separate financial
statements to account for those investments at cost or in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. The
implementation of this amendment will not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (effective for financial years beginning on or
after 1 January 2014}

13



AB AMBER GRID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.1, Basis of preparation {cont’d)

As a result of the new standards IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 this standard was renamed and addresses the
application of the equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The implementation of
this amendment will not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Amendment to JAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

This amendment clarifies the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also clarifies the
application of the 1AS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as central clearing house systems) which
apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The Company has not yet evaluated the impact of
the implementation of this standard.

IAS 36 — Impairment of Assets (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

The amendment requires additiona) disclosures about fair value assessment when recoverable amount is
determined based on the fair value less costs to sell, and removes inadvertent consequences arising from IFRS 13
to IAS 36 disclosures. This amendment will have no impact on the Company's financial position or results,
however, may results in additional disclosures.

IAS 39 Financial instruments. Recognition and Measurement {(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2014}

The amendment allows to continue hedge accounting when the change of derivative financial instruments for
hedging meets the criteria. This amendment will not have impact on the Company's financial position or results of
the Company as a hedge accounting is not applied in the Company.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments { currently no effective date, once endorsed by the EU)

IFRS 9 will eventually replace IAS 39. The IASB has issued the first three parts of the standard, establishing a new
classification and measurement framework for financial assets, requirements on the accounting for financial
liabilities and hedge accounting. The Company has nat yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this
standard.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements {effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities, including special purpose entities. The
changes introduced by IFRS 10 will require management to exercise significant judgment to determine which
entities are controlled and, therefore, are required to be consolidated by a parent. Examples of areas of significant
judgment include evaluating de facto control, potential voting rights or whether a decision maker is acting as a
principal or agent. IFRS 10 replaces the part of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements related to
consolidated financial statements and replaces SIC 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities. This amendment
will not have impact on the Company's financial position or results as the Company has no controlled entities.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014)

IFRS 11 eliminates proportionate consolidation of jointly controlled entities. Under IFRS 11, jointly controlled
entities, if classified as joint ventures {a newly defined term), must be accounted for using the equity method.
Additionally, jointly controlled assets and operations are joint operations under IFRS 11, and the accounting for
those arrangements will generally be consistent with today’s accounting. That is, the entity will continue to
recognize its relative share of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses. The Company has not yet evaluated the
impact of the implementation of this standard.

14
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AB AMBER GRID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

{all amounts are in LTt thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont'd)
2.1. Basis of preparation {cont’d)

IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in Other Entities (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2014)

IFRS 12 combines the disclosure requirements for an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
investments in associates and structured entities into one comprehensive disclosure standard. A number of new
disclosures also will be reguired such as disclosing the judgments made to determine control over another entity.
The Company has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this standard.

IFRS 14 Regulatory deferred accounts (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2016, once
endorsed by the EU)

This is an interim standard that provides for first-time adopters the opportunity to leave the regulative assets and
liabilities in the balance sheet until the 1ASB finalizes detailed assets and liabilities accounting project. Application
of this standard will have no impact on the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 27 - Investment Entities {effective for financial years beginning on or after 1
January 2014}

The amendments apply to entities that qualify as investment entities. The amendments provide an exception to
the consolidation requirements of IFRS 10 by requiring investment entities to measure their subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss, rather than consolidate them. The implementation of this amendment will not have
any impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Improvements to IFRSs (Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2014, once endorsed by the EU)

Effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2014, once endorsed by the EU:
In December 2013 IASB issued omnibus of necessary, but non-urgent amendments to the following standards:

o |FRS 1 First-time adoption of IFRS;

¢ |FRS 2 Share-based Payment;

» [FRS 3 Business Cormbinations;

¢ |FRS 8 Operating Segments;

#|FRS 13 Fair value Measurement;

®|AS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;

#|AS 24 Related Party Disclosures;

¢]AS 38 Intangible Assets;

¢ |AS 40 Investment property.

The adoption of these amendments may result in changes to accounting policies or disclosures but will not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of the Company.

IFRIC Interpretation 21 Levies (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2014, once endorsed
by the EU)

This interpretation addresses the accounting for levies imposed by governments. Liability to pay a levy is
recoghized in the financial statements when the activity that triggers the payment of the levy occurs. The

Company has not yet evaluated the impact of the implementation of this interpretation.

The Company plans to adopt the above mentioned standards and interpretations on their effectiveness date
provided they are endorsed by the EU.
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AB AMBER GRID

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles {cont’d)
2.2, Measurement and presentation currency

The amounts shown in these financial statements are measured and presented in the local currency of the
Republic of Lithuania, Litas {LTL).

Starting from 2 February 2002, Lithuanian Litas is pegged to EUR at the rate of 3.4528 LTL for 1 EUR, and the
exchange rates in relation to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

2.3. Investment in a joint venture

The Company has an interest in a joint venture UAB GET Baltic, which is a jointly controlled entity, whereby the
venturers have a contractual arrangement that establishes joint control over the economic activities of the
entity. The Company recognizes its interest in the joint venture using the equity method. Applying the equity
method an interest in a jointly controlled entity is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-
acquisition change in the Company’s share of net assets of the jointly controlled entity. The profit or loss of the
Company includes the Company's share of the profit or loss of the jointly controlled entity. The unrealized
Company's gain or loss which originate due to transactions between the Company and joint venture is
eliminated.

2.4, Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Company are measured initially at cost. Intangible assets are recognised if it is probable
that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of asset
can be measured reliably.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the best
estimate of their useful lives {4 years). The useful lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed
annually to ensure they are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of non-current
intangible assets. Intangible assets mainly consist of software and licenses used in main activities of the

Company.

The Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful live.

2.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the
recognition criteria are met. Likewise, when a major repair is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and

maintenance costs are recognised as profit or loss as incurred.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are eliminated from
the accounting, and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.
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Accounting principles {cont’d)
2.5. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 25 - 60 years;
Transmission networks and related installations 55 years;
Distribution networks and related installations 55 years;
Machinery and equipment 5- 20 years;
Other buildings and structures 15 - 19 years;
Vehicles 6 years;
Other equipment, tools and devices 4 - 9 years;
Other property, plant and equipment 4 - 9 years.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation methad are reviewed annually to ensure that they are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment.

The Company has land as property plant and equipment with unlimited useful life; therefore it is not
depreciated.

Construction in progress is stated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, plant and equipment and other
directly attributable costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are compieted
and put into operation.

The Company estimates the value of property, plant and equipment whenever there is an indication that the
property, plant and equipment may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement,
whenever estimated.

2.6. Financial assets

According to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” the Company’s financial assets are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, and availabie-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus
{except for the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The category financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets classified as held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near
term. Gains or losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments that are
intended to be held-to-maturity are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest methaod.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)

2.6,  Financial assets (cont’d)

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Receivables are initially recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. Current receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or
impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Allowance for doubtful receivables is evaluated when the indications leading to the impairment of accounts
receivables are noticed and the carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account.
Impaired debts and accounts receivable are derecognised (written-off) when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
which are not classified in any of these three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale
financial assets are measured at fair value with gains or losses {except impairment and gain or losses from foreign
currencies exchange) being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or
until the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in
equity is included in the income statement.

2.7. Derecagnition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
- the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred cantrol of the asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes
the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.8. Inventories

Inventories of the Company, consisting of natural gas in pipelines and storage at the year-end and other
inventories, are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of natural gas is determined on the basis of
weighted average cost, and the cost of the remaining inventories is determined on the basis of the first-in, first-out
{FIFO) method. Inventories that cannot be realised are written off.

2.9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

2.10. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received, less the costs of transaction. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being
recognised in the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

2,11. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Based on the decision of
the Company specific borrowings do not become general borrowings after the construction/acquisition of the
qualifying assets financed from the specific borrowing is completed and therefore related borrowing costs are not
capitalised further.

2.12,  Grants (deferred revenue)

Grants received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase, construction or other acquisition
of non-current assets are considered as asset-related grants. Assets received free of charge are also allocated to
this group of grants. The amount of the grants related to assets is recognised as income in the financial statements
over the period of depreciation of the assets associated with this grant and is included under the caption of
income in the income statement.

Payments received from customers for the connection to the Company’s gas systems are accounted for as
deferred revenue and recognised as income over the expected useful life of the related capitalised assets.

Grants received as a compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting
period, also, all the grants, which are not grants related to assets, are considered as grants refated to income. The
income-related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of the expenses incurred during the reporting
period or unearned income to be compensated by that grant.

The balance of unutilised grants is shown under caption of “Grants (deferred revenue)” in the statement of
financial position.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.13.  Non-current employee benefits

Defined benefit plan — post employment benefits

According to the collective agreement, each employee leaving the Company at the retirement age is entitled to a
one-time payment. Employment benefits are recognised in the statement of financial position and reflect the
present value of future payments at the date of the statement of financial position. The above mentioned
employment benefit obligation is calculated based on actuarial assumptions, using the projected unit credit
method. Present value of the non-current obligation to employees is determined by discounting estimated future
cash flows using the discount rate which reflects the interest rate of the Government bonds of the same currency
and similar maturity as the employment benefits. The actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period when incurred. They will not be reclassified to profit or loss in future periods.

The past service costs are recognized in the income statement immadiately.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company is paying benefits to its employees for the leng work experience in the Company. Non-current
obligation for employment benefit is recognised in the statement of financial position as the present value of
defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position. Present value of defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting estimated future cash flows using the discount rate which reflects the
interest rate of the Government bends of the same currency and the similar maturity as the employment benefits.

2.14. Income tax

Income tax charge is based on profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. Income tax is calculated based
on the Lithuanian tax legislation.

15 % income tax rate has been established starting from 1 January 2010 for companies operating in Republic of
Lithuania.

Starting from 1 January 2014 deductable tax losses carried forward can be used to reduce the taxable income
earned during the reporting year by maximum 70%. Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except
for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments. Such carrying
forward is disrupted if the Company stops its activities due to which these losses were incurred except when the
Company does not continue its activities due to reasons which do not depend on the Company itself. The losses
from disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments can be carried forward for 5 consecutive years
and only be used to reduce the taxable income earned from the transactions of the same nature.

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liahilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax asset and
liability is measured using the tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to reverse hased on tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the date of the
statement of financial position.

Deferred tax asset have been recognised in the statement of financial position to the extent the management
believes it will be realised in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of
the deferred tax asset is not going to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset Is not recognised in the
financial statements.
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Accounting principles {cont’d)

2.15. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

Financial lease

Finance leases that transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the commencement of the lease. The Company recognises financial leases as assets
and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal at the inception of the lease to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, to the present value of the minimum lease payments. The rate of discount used
when calculating the present value of minimum payments of financial lease is the interest rate implicit in the
financial lease agreement, when it is possible to determine it, in other cases, Company’s incremental interest rate
on borrowings applies. Directly attributable initial costs are included into the asset value. Lease payments are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

The depreciation is accounted for financial lease assets. The depreciation policy for leased assets is consistent with
that for depreciable assets that are owned. The leased assets cannot be depreciated over a period fonger than
lease term, unless the Company, according to the lease contract, obtains ownership at the end of the lease term.

Operating lease

Leases where the lessor retains all significant risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.16. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of VAT and
discounts.

Revenues from customers for the natural gas transmission service are recognised twice a month based on the data
presented by the Distribution System Operator on the natural gas guantities distributed to the system users
connected to the distribution system and on the statements of transmitted natural gas signed by the Company
with system users who are directly connected to the transmission system.

2.17.  Foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
Gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets

and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies on the balance sheet date are recognised in the income
statement. Such balances are translated at period-end exchange rates.
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Accounting principles {cont’d)

2.18. Impairment of assets

Financial assets

Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each date of the statements of financial position.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, whenever, based on events that have occurred, it is probabie that
the Company will not collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of loans or receivables, an
impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in the income statement. The reversal of impairment losses previously
recognised is recorded when the decrease in impairment loss can be justified by an event occurring after the write-
down. Such reversal is recorded in the income statement in the same caption, where the impairment losses have
been recognised. However, the increased carrying amount is only recognised to the extent it does not exceed the
amortised cost that would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Dther assets

Other assets of the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for the
asset no longer exist or have decreased significantly. The reversal is accounted in the same caption of the income
statement as the impairment loss.

2.19, Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unchservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities.

Level 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observahle, other than quoted market prices included within Level 1.

Level 3 — valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

2.20.  Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
management of the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies. The significant areas of estimation used in the
preparation of these financial statements relate to depreciation and impairment evaluation of property, plant and
equipment {(Note 2.5 and Note 5) and deferred income tax asset {Note 2.14 and Note 18). Future events may occur
which may cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in
estimates will be recorded in the financial statements, when determinable.
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.20.  Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements (cont’d)

If indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment exist, the non-current asset’s value based on the
discounted cash flows of the Company is performed. Assessing the discounted cash flows using a discount rate,
the presumption is broadiy in line with the NCC price regulation applicable to the assessment rate of return
assumptions. Mostly, the change of discount rate and volume of transferable gas quantity affect the change of the
Company's recoverable value of fixed assets.

The Company performed an impairment test based on value in use method which did not result in any impairment
charge. However, there are significant uncertainties in the assumptions used in preparing a relevant forecast of
cash flows. Uncertainties are associated with expected changes in the gas markets after implementation of major
infrastructure projects in the gas system and after starting the LNG terminal in Klaipeda, and the expected changes
in the regulatory environment.

2.21. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed in financial statements
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits
is probable.

2.22.  Subsequent events

Post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the date of the
statement of financial position {adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

2.23.  Offsetting

When preparing the financial statements, assets and liabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set off,
except in those cases where certain IFRS specifically permit or require such set-off.

2.24.  Administration of the funds of the liquefied natural gas terminal

On 12 June 2012 the Seimas of the Republic of Lithuania adopted the Law on the Liquefied Natural Gas Terminal
{hereinafter, LNGT), which set forth that LNGT, its infrastructure and connector installation and operation may be
financed by including its expenses in the price for the natural gas transmission service. Accordingly, on 9 October
2012 National Commission for Energy Control and Prices ((hereinafter, NCC) passed a Resolution No 03-294 on the
Approval of the Procedure for the Administration of the Funds Allocated to the Installation and Operation
Expenses of the Liquefted Natural Gas Terminal, its infrastructure and connector, which set forth the procedure for
the administration of the above expenses. With its Resolution No 03-275 of 28 September 2012 Amending the
Resolution No 03-106 of 8 August 2008 of the NCC on the Approval of the Methodology for the Calculation of
Price Caps on Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution, NCC set forth that funds allocated for the compensation
of the expenses or a part thereof from natural gas terminal, its infrastructure and connector installation may be
established as a secondary and integral component of the natural gas transmission price cap — LNGT suppiement.
With its Resolution No 03-330 of 26 October 2012 NCC approved the LNGT supplement — 37.53 LTL/1000 m3,
whereas with the Resolution of 11 October 2013, instead of the LNGT supplement, it approved a secondary gas
supply security component of 39.36 LTL/1000 m3 for the period of 3—31December 2014,
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Accounting principles (cont’d)
2.24. Administration of the funds of the liquefied natural gas terminal (cont’d)

Following the requirements of the above legal acts, the Company collects and administrates LNGT funds. in the
collection and administration of the LNGT funds, the Company acts as an intermediary on behalf of the state, and
this activity does not generate operating income/profit for the Company, except for the share of the LNGT funds
allocated to cover the administration expenses of LNGT funds, which is considered as the Company's income (16
Note}. LNGT funds collected from the payers of LNGT funds and transferred to the recipients of LNGT funds (LNGT
project implementing company or LNGT operator) are not considered as the Company’s income/expenses, but are
accounted for as other receivables/other payables and other financial assets.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in the natural gas transmission activity. It operates as one segment.
All the Company’s non-current assets are located in Lithuania where the Company performs its operations.

In 2013 the Company generated over 72.19% of its revenue from the Lithuanian customers, 27.81% - revenues
from transit services , i.e. transported gas to the Kaliningrad region of the Russian Federation.

During the period of 5 months, ended cn 31 Decemeber 2013, there were four customers each of which generated
revenues exceeding 10 % of total Company’s revenues and in total amounted to LTL 47,385 thousand. They are as
follows:

Customer A- LTL 20,166 thousand;

Customer B- LTL 9,661 thousnad;

Customer C- LTL 9,314 thousand;

Customer D- LTL 8,244 thousand.

Intangible assets

Movement of intangible assets for the current periods:

Other

Patents, intangible

licenses Software assets Total
Cost:
As at 31 July 2013 1,087 1,451 145 2,683
Additions during the period of 5 months
ended on 31 December 2013 9 351 - 360
As at 31 December 2013 1,096 1,802 145 3,043
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 31 July 2013 232 304 118 1,154
Charge for period of 5 months ended on
31 December 2013 109 86 15 210
AS at 31 December 2013 341 290 133 1,364
Net book value as at 31 July 2013 855 647 27 1,529
Net book value as at 31 December 2013 755 912 12 1,679

Part of intangible assets with the acquisition value of LTL 793 thousand as at 31 December 2013 was fully
amortised, but still in use.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

Movement of property, plant and eguipment for the current and prior periods:

Other
Transmission Distributlon Other Other
. networks and networks huildings Machinery equipment property, Constn_'uct
Land Buildings and Vehicles plant and fon in Total
retatad and related and equipment , tools and sipmen rozres:
installations installations structures auipme devices € l: progress
Cost:
As at 31 July 2013 387 34,312 1,572,534 412 27,526 316,639 16,018 51,822 1,485 107,486 2,128,571

Additions during the peried

of 5 months ended on 31

December 2013 - - - - 21 9 866 397 266 37,461 39,020
Reclassification during the

period of 5 moanths ended

on 31 December 2013 - 1,173 116,775 - 624 11,968 - 3,977 - [134,517) -

1 December 2
/et STDecember 2013 387 35485 1,689,309 at2 28,171 328,616 16,884 56,196 1,701 10,430 2,167,591

Accumulated depreciation:

As ot 31 July 2013 . 7,110 295,826 29 5,957 50,757 11,022 40,463 735 - 553,209
Charge for period of 5

months ended on 31

December 2013 - 467 20,814 4 626 7,442 690 1,888 a0 - 32,011

Reclassification during the
pearlod of 5 months ended

on 31 Decemnber 2013 - 10 - - {10} - - - - - -
AS at 31 Dr ber 2013

al ecember . 7,587 417,640 33 7,573 98,199 11,712 42,351 815 - 585,910
impairment:

Balance as at 31 July 2013

Impairment formed during
5 morths period ended on

31 December 2013 - - - - - - - - - 89 99
Net bock value as at 31
July 2013 387 27,202 1,175,708 383 20,569 225,882 4,99 11,359 700 107,486 1,574,672
Net book value as at 31
December 2013 337 27,398 1,271,665 379 20,598 230,417 5,172 13,845 886 10,331 1,581,582

Part of property, plant and equipment with historical cost of LTL 37,125 thousand as at 31 December 2013 was fully
depreciated, but still in use.

As at 31 December 2013 the Company had property, plant and equipment (office equipment) of value LTL 243
thousand, which is acquired under financial lease agreements.

The Company did not have any borrowing costs in 2013 related to qualifying assets.
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Major abjects of construction in progress of the Company as at 31 July and 31 December 2013 were as follows:

31 December 31 July
Object 2013 2013
Construction of gas transmission pipeline Jurbarkas—Klaipéda: - 98,584
Construction of gas transmission pipeline from the branch to gas distribution
station (GDS) in Tauragé to the branch to GDS in Silute - 54,152
Construction of gas transmission pipeline from the branch
to GDS in Siluté to the branch to GDS-2 in Klaipéda, the branch to GDS-2
in Klaipéda and GDS-2 in Klaipéda - 44,832
Reconstruction of GDS containers - 3,988

Construction of gas transmission pipeline to Alytus GDS, acquisition of intelligent

pig launcher and receiver chambers and replacement works of line block valves

with bypasses No. 2; 3 1,742 -
Construction of gas transmission pipeline to Marijampolé GDS, acquisition of

intefligent pig launcher and receiver chambers and replacement works of line block

valves with bypass No. 3 1,558
Acquisition of pollution reduction equipment 1,395 -
Replacement works of line block valves in gas transmission pipelines to
Pajiemeniai and BirZai GDS and integration into SCADA system 941 -
Acquisition of intelligent pig launcher chambers for Panevézys-Siauliai-Klaipéda gas
transmission pipeline 762 -
Reconstruction of odorant warehouse 967
Other 2,926 4,514
10,331 107,486
Inventories
31 December 31 July
2013 2013
Raw materials, spare parts and other inventories 4,559 5,890
Natural gas 22,173 21,085
Inventories, gross 26,732 26,975
Less: allowance for inventories {18) {146)
26,714 26,829

The Company’s cost of inventories accounted for at net realisable value amounted to LTL 4,541 thousand as at
31 December 2013. Changes in the allowance for inventories were included into other expenses.
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Accounts receivable

31 December 31 July
2013 2013
Receivables for transmission and distribution of natural gas from

customers 16,225 8,441
Other trade receivables 8 -
Less: allowance for accounts receivable (64) (139)
Total trade accounts receivable 16,169 8,302
Administrated LNGT receivables (Note 2.24) 56,500 38,657
Other accounts receivable 633 5,725
73,302 52,684

As at 31 December 2013 other accounts receivable decreased due to finished construction of gas transmission
pipeline Jurbarkas—Klaipéda project in November 2013 which was financed by Eurcpean Union structural funds.

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due in 15 calendar days. The majority of these
overdue receivables were paid off in the beginning of January 2014.

Movements in the allowance for impairment of the Company’s receivables were as follows:

Individually
impaired
Balance as of 31 July 2013 139
Utilised during the period of 5 months ended on 31 December 2013 (45}
Unused amounts reversed during the period of 5 months ended on 31 December 2013 {30)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 64

Changes in the allowance for accounts receivable were included into other expenses.

The ageing analysis of the Company’s trade and other accounts receivable as at 31 July 2013 and as at 31
December 2013 is as follows:

Trade and other receivahles past due but not impaired

Trade and other
receivables neither Lessthan30 31-90 91-180 181 -360 More than

past due nor impaired  days days days days 360 days Total
31 July 2013 16,828 5,480 10,843 16,814 2,730 - 52,684
31 December 2013 26,251 3,149 5,523 5,347 33,032* - 73,302

*Administrated LNGT receivables from Achema AB (Note 22)

Other financial assets

As at 31 December 2013 the Campany’s other financial assets consisted of cash to be paid to LNGT fund receivers
and are kept in line with requirements of legal acts in a selected and opened separate bank account of LNGT funds

(Note 2.24).
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Cash and cash equivalents

31 December 31 July

2013 2013
Cash at bank 19,718 12,142
19,718 12,142

Cash at banks is invested into shortest-term {overnight) deposits. Overnight deposits are with floating or fixed
interest rate. Floating rate depends upon VILIBOR interbank interest rate announced by the Bank of Lithuania.
During the period of 5 months, ended on 31 December 2013, the Company had not invested into other term
deposits.

Reserves

Legal reserve

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under legislation of the Republic of Lithuania. Annual transfers of not less
than 5% of net profit are compulsory until the reserve reaches 10% of the share capital.

The Company’s legal reserve consists of LTL 17,838 thousand and it comprises 10% of the share capital.
Other reserves
Other reserves are formed based on the decision of the General Shareholders’ Meeting on appropriation of

distributable profit. These reserves can only be used for the purposes approved by the General Shareholders’
Meeting for the corporate business development.

Borrowing

According to a long term loan agreement signed between the Company and the bank AB Swedbank on 22 October
2012 the amount of loan as of 31 December 2013 was LTL 180 million {is denominated in Euros which amount
to 52.1 million). The loan is taken to meet Company’s working capital needs.

31 December 31 July
2013 2013
Non-current borrowings
Borrowings fram Lithuanian credit institutions 135,000 157,500
Lease 118 -
Current borrowings
Current portion of non-current borrowings 45,000 23,572
Lease 83 -
180,201 181,072
The terms of repayment of non-current borrowings are as follows:
31 December 31 July 31 December 31 July
2013 2013 2013 2013
Non-fixed Non-fixed
Fixed interest Fixed interest interest bearing interest
bearing loan bearing loan loan bearing loan
2013 1,072 i -
2014 45,000 45,000
2015 45,000 45,000
2016 . 45,000 45,000
2017 = 45,000 45,000
1,072 180,000 180,000
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Borrowing (cont’d)

Current interest rates are close to effective interest rates. As at 21 December 2013 the annual interest rate of the
Company’s borrowings outstanding was 1.513 % {Interest rate applied is 3 months EURIBOR + 1.29 %).

Borrowings as at 31 July 2013 and as at 31 December 2013 in national and foreign currencies expressed in LTL
were as follows:

Borrowings denominated in: 31 December 2013 31 July 2013
EUR 180,000 181,072
180,000 181,072

None of the Company’s loans are secured by pledging assets owned by the Company or by third parties
guarantees.

Grants (deferred revenue)

2013

Deferred

revenue Grants Total
Balance as at 31 July 2013 5,705 116,348 122,053
Received during the period of 5 months ended on 31

December 2013 10,446 10,446

Amortisation during the period of 5 months ended on 31
December 2013 (49) (1,378) {1,427)
Balance at the end of the period 31 December 2013 5,656 125,416 131,072

Increase in grants (deferred revenue) in 2013 was influenced by nen-current asset grants, out of which LTL 10,063
thousand comprised construction of gas transmission pipeline Jurbarkas—Klaipéda financed by EU structural funds.

Average period which the grants are expected to be amortized is 18,5 years.

Non-current employee benefits

As at 31 December 2013 the Company’s employee benefits resulting from one-time payments to employees
leaving the Company at the retirement age were equal to LTL 1,106 thousand (LTL 846 thousand as at 31 July
2013}, other non-current employee benefits resulting from bonuses for long work experience in the Company
were equal to LTL 285 thousand (LTL 285 thousand as at 31 July 2013).

The major assumptions made when estimating the Company's liabilities of non-current employee benefits are the
following:

31 December 2013

Discount rate 5.66%
Annual employee turnover rate 2%
Annual salary increase 2%
Average time to retirement (years) 19,72

The Company have no plan assets designated for settlement with employee benefit obligations.
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14  Trade payables

31 December 31July
2013 2013
Suppliers according to construction programme 31 6,788
Suppliers according to reconstruction programme 7,949 1,051
Service suppliers 1,244 188
Suppliers of maintenance of non-current assets 1,688 -
Other 1,761 501
12,673 8,528

The above mentioned trade payables are non-interest bearing and majority of them are normally settled on 30
days terms.

15  Other payables and current liabilities

31 December _ BT
2013 2013

Administrated LNGT payables {(Note 2.24) 45,270 27,302
Accrued administrated LNGT funds* {Note 2.24) 54,644 37,625
Real estate tax (RET) payable 1,838
Value added tax (VAT) payable 1,452 .
Other payables 663 1,880

103,867 66,807

*Accrued administrated LNGT funds are accounted under caption LNGT payables only when users of natural gas
transmission system pay it to the Company.

Other payables and current liabilities of the Company as of 31 December 2013 were significantly increased due to
payables and administrated LNGT funds accrued during the period.

16 Income

The Company‘s income consists of the following:

Period of 5
maonths
ended on 31
December
2013

Natural gas transmission and transit 70,006
Sales of natural gas 2,508
Grants recognized as income 1,428
LNGT administration income 126
Other income 33
74,101
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Financial activity

Period of 5
months ended
on 31 December

2013
Interest income 13
Fines and penalties income 50
Total income from financial activities 63
Interest expenses on borrowings 1,165
Total expenses from financial activities 1,165
Result from financial activities, net 1,102
Income tax
Period of 5
months ended
on 31 December
2013

Income tax:
Profit before tax 2,425
Changes in temporary differences 15,810
Permanent differences 277
Taxable income for the year 18,512
Current year income tax 2,766
Current year income tax incentive {(1,388)
Current year income tax after applying income tax incentive 1,388
Change in deferred income tax during the year {4,034)
Income tax expense {income) charged to the income statement (2,646)

According to the provisions of the Law on Corporate Income Tax (hereinafter — the Law), which came into effect
starting 1 January 2009, the income tax incentive may be used for investments into qualifying property, plant and
equipment. When calculating current income tax for the year 2013 the Company used the benefit of the above
mentioned incentive and reduced income tax expenses for the year 2013 by a total amount of LTL 1,388 thousand.
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Income tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax asset:

Vacation accrual

Accrual for non-current employee benefit
Unused income tax incentive

Deferred tax asset before valuation allowance
Less: valuation allowance

Less: deferred tax asset netted with deferred tax liability

Deferred tax asset, net

Deferred tax liability:
Difference in tax base of property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax liability, net

31 December 2013 31 July 2013

160 147

208 170

4,271 2,625

4,639 2,942

(4,639) {2,942)

{112,190} {114,527)

(107,551) (111,585)

Valuation allowance was made for part of the deferred tax asset that, in the opinion of the management, is not to
be realised probable in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax asset and deferred income tax liability are
netted off in the statement of financial position of the Company, as they both are related to the same tax

authority.

While assessing deferred income tax asset and liability components in 2013 the Company has used income tax rate

of 15%.

The reported amount of income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the amount of income tax expense

that would result from applying the statutory income tax rate of 15 %:

Profit before tax

Tax (expense) at the applicable standard tax rate
Non-deductible items

Income tax incentive

Other

Income tax gain (expense)

32
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Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share reflect the Company’s net income, divided by the weighted average number of shares.
There are no diluting instruments, therefore basic and diluted earnings per share are equal. Calculations of the
basic earnings per share are presented below:

31
December
2013

Net profit attributable to the shareholders {in LTL thousand) 5,071
Weighted average number of shares {in thousands) 178,383
Basic earnings per share (in LTL) 0.03

There were no changes in the share capital of the Company during 2013, therefore the weighted average number
of shares equals to the total number of shares at the end of the year.

Cash flows from investing and financing activities
When calculating cash flows from investing activities in 2013, the change in accounts payable for non-current
assets of the Company of LTL 141 thousand and assets leased for LTL 201 thousand was taken into account.

When determining the grants received in cash flows from financing activities of 2013 the change in grants received
by the Company of LTL 5,179 thousand was evaluated.

Financial assets and liabilities and risk management

Liguidity risk
The Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents or have available funding to

meet their commitments. Liquidity risk is managed by constantly forecasting the current and non-current cash
flows of the Company. According to forecast, if necessary, the Company adopts deciosions to ensure its solvency.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at 31 December 2013
based on contractual undiscounted payments (scheduled payments including interest).

lessthan3 3to12 More than
Ondemand meoenths months 1to5years 5years Total
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 1,797 24,468 161,669 187,934
Other current liabilities 27,302% 82 - - - 27,384
Trade payables - 8,528 - - 8,528
Balance as at 31 July 2013 27,302 10,407 24,468 161,669 - 223,846
Interest bearing loans and borrowings - 703 46,840 138,352 185,895
Other current liabilities 45,270* 346 - - - 45,616
Trade payables - 12,673 - - - 12,673
Balance as at 31 December 2013 45,270 13,722 46,840 138,352 - 244,184

*LNGT funds
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Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont'd)

Credit risk

The maximum credit risk is equal to the trade receivables, other receivables, cash and short term investments less
impairment losses. Large amount of overdue receivables may disturb the Company’s everyday activity, and may
cause it to look for additional financial resources. Credit risk is managed through regular monitoring procedures
{individual debtors’ supervision, monitoring and analysis of customers, seeking to anticipate the potential solvency
problems in the future, etc.). The Company has approved the Regulation of customer debt management, which
includes specific actions, deadlines, which must be followed in order to reduce customer liabilities.

The Company faces the risk when keeping the funds in bank accounts or investing it in short term instruments. The
level of risk faced depends upon the reliability of the selected bank. To manage this risk the Company has
approved the cash investment regulations. These regulations set (1) the reliability limits of the banks setected for
cooperation (2} the limits of diversification for deposing or investing cash to investment products of banks or their
subsidiaries, other securities etc. The reliability level is assessed based on the publicly available information
regarding partners selection.

The Company does not guarantee obligations of other parties.

interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2013 the Company had one loan with fixed interest rate. The Company’s loan subject to
variable interest rate is related to EURIBOR and creates interest rate risk. Concerning the situation in the market of
bank interest rates during reporting period of 2013, the Company did not enter into any transaction on financial
instruments used for the management of interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’'s profit before tax to a reasonably possible
change in EURIBOR interest rates, with all other variables held constant. There is no impact on the Company’s
equity, other than that on current year profit.

EURIBOR increase Effect on the profit before the
in basis points income tax
31 December 2013 +100 {1,800}

Gas import price fluctuation risk

Natural gas import price depends on heavy fuel oil and gasoline prices in international market, the USD and EUR
ratio fixed by the European Central Bank and actual natural gas calorific value. In 2013 the Company did not take
any action to reduce the risk of natural gas price fluctuation.

Concentration risk

The Company is subject to a significant credit risk concentration, as credit risk is distributed among the Company's
10 major customers whose liabilities constitute more than 85 percent of the total trade receivables of the
Company as at 31 December 2013. However, if customers were lost and the volume of transmitted gas decreases,
the gas transportation service prices would increase as regulated by the State Regulated Pricing Methodology for
the Natural Gas Sector approved by NCC.
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Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont’d)

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The Company’s principal financial instruments not carried at fair value are trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables, long-term and short-term borrowings.

The following methods and assumptions are used by the Company to estimate the fair value of each class of
financial instruments:
{(a) The carrying amount of current trade and other accounts receivable, current accounts payable and short-
term borrowings approximates fair value;
(b} The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on the current rates available for borrowing with the
same maturity profile similar credit risk. The Company determined that the fair value of non-current
borrowing with fixed interest rates approximates its carrying amounts {level 2).

Commitments and contingencies

Legal disputes

Pursuant to the Republic of Lithuania Law on Liquefied Gas Terminal and resolutions made by NCC, users of natural
gas system, which transport natural gas by the transmission system paying for transmission services of natural gas
must pay an inseparable gas transmission price component — LNGT extra (funds). Based on the provisions of legal
acts, LNGT funds are administrated by natural gas transmission system operator. Until 31 July 2013 the function of
LNGT funds” administrator was performed by AB Lietuvos Dujos. NCC made a decision on the abolishment of
natural gas transmission licence issued to AB Lietuvos Dujos and on the issuance of terminated licence to the
Company. Since 1 August 2013 the Company collects LNGT funds from natural gas system users and applies LNGT
extra established by NCC. Concerning the systematic non-payment of LNGT extra by AB Achema as user of
transmission system, AB Lietuvos Dujos being LNGT funds’ administrator on 12 April 2013 applied to Kaunas
Regional Court concerning the payment of LNGT extra, awarding of penalties and liability to implement the
agreement. On 1 August 2013 AB Lietuvos Dujos has passed the above mentioned case to AB Amber Grid under
Statement of transfer and acceptance. On 17 August 2013 AB Amber Grid has specified the amount of the action.
On 12 December 2013 the Court of First Instance with its ruling upheld the action of AB Amber Grid in part —
awarded all required debt and procedural interest, but the awarded penalties were reduced from 0.04 per cent to
0.02 per cent. AB Achema appealed the ruling of the court, and AB Amber Grid appealed for the award of
penalties. According to opinion of the Management, the outcome of this legal case shall not have any financial
effect on the Company as after the Court will uphold the action of AB Amber Grid the awarded amount shall be
transferred to LNGT extra (funds) receiver.

On 1% November 2012 AB Achema applied to Vilnius Regional Administrative Court asking to abolish paragraphs
3.1 and 4 of Regulation No 03-317 of 19 Qctober 2012 On the Determination of Funds for the Installation of
Liquefied Natural Gas Terminal, its Infrastructure and Link, and for the Compensation of Utilisation Expenses or
Part of it for 2013, and to abolish paragraph 2 of Resolution No 03-330 of NCC of 26 October 2012 On Correction
of Price Ceiling of AB Lietuvos Dujos Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution and on the Establishment of
Additional and Inseparable Price Component to Natural Gas Transmission Price Ceiling (LNGT extra) for 2013. On
29 January 2013 with the courts ruling AB Lietuvos Dujos was included in the legal dispute with the third interested
party. On 1 August 2013 AB Lietuvos Dujos has passed the above mentioned case to AB Amber Grid under
Statement of transfer and acceptance. The case is being heard at the court of first instance. The management
believes that the outcome of the case is unclear and can not be reasonably estimated.
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Commitments and contingencies (cont’d)

On 10 July 2013 AB Lietuvos Dujos received a letter form Panevéiys City District Court, which stated that on 3 July
2013 the court ruling was adopted stating on the decision to apply to Specific judicial panel on the conflict of
Jurisdiction asking to answer the guesticn on whether the action brought in line with the action of claimant
Prosecutor of Division of the Protection of Public Interest of Panevéiys Regional Prosecutor's Office, to defendants
the Ministry of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania, AB Lietuvos Dujos, third parties, the Lithuanian Road
Administration under the Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic of Lithuania, SE Panevéjio
Regiono Keliai in the part on the abolishment of orders by the Minister for Economy on the renaming of roads of
state importance, and application of restitution, is to be attributed to courts of general competence or to
administrative court. On 1 August 2013 AB Lietuvos Dujos has passed the above mentioned case to AB Amber Grid
under Statement of transfer and acceptance. A part of road owned by AB Amber Grid to PanevéZys gas compressor
station falls under a road section Piniava-PaliGnikis of state importance. As roads of state importance may only be
owned by the state the Prosecutor requests to abolish orders of the Minister for economy and statements of
transfer, by which this road was registered as the ownership of AB Lietuvos Dujos, and now of AB Amber Grid. The
action was subject to several revisions as the Prosecutor specified requisitions. The case is heard at the court of
first instance. The finalisation of the case may have financial influence to the Company as the Company seeks to be
awarded a compensation if the court abolished AB Amber Grid’s right of ownership to at least part of the road
{6.534 sg. m). The management believes that the outcome of the case is unclear and can not be reasonably
estimated.

Commitments for non-current assets acquisition

On 31 Decemnber 2013 the Company had agreements for the acquisition of non-current assets, which is not
recognised for the purpose of these financial statements, for a total value of LTL 10,400 thousand.

Related party transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant
influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

The related parties of the Company, transaction amounts and debts as at 31 December 2013 were as follows:
OAO Gazprom {one of the major shareholders of the Company);
—  UAB GET Baltic {joint venture, the member of which is the Company);
—  AB Lietuvos Dujos (the same shareholders);
—  AS Latvijas Gaze (the same shareholders).

The table below represents the Company’s transactions and outstanding balances with related parties on 31 December 2013.

Accounts

2013 Purchases Sales receivable  Accounts payable
OAQO Gazprom - 20,166 9,320
AB Lietuvos Dujos 5,590 14,137 1,523 1
Of which the LNGT funds - 4,822 1,379 -
UAB GET Baltic 232 221 = 280
AS Latvijas Gaze 26 . .

5,848 34,524 10,843 281
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Related party transactions (cont’d)

On 1 August 2013 the Company took over all rights and responsibilities regarding matters of natural gas
transmission, which were concluded in agreement signed on 16 December 1999 No. 17 in-2000 between Open
Joint Stock Company Gazprom and Public Limited Liability Company Lietuvos Dujos for the natural gas supply into
Republic of Lithuania quantities and terms in 2000-2015. The object of the agreement is import of part of natural
gas into Republic of Lithuania and natural gas transit service through the Republic of Lithuania to the Russian
Federation Kaliningrad Region. Natural gas import price depends on heavy fuel oil and gasoline prices in the
international market, US doilar and EUR exchange rate set by the European Central Bank and actual natural gas
caloric value. The agreement defines the natural gas quantities provided to the Company until 2016. The
agreement is valid until 31 December 2015.

The Company does not treat the Government controlled companies as one client because there is no significant
economic integration between these companies. The Company supply gas to the Government controlled
companies; the transactions with them are concluded on the arm’s length principle.

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurred in cash in 15 days term
in 2013. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable and no
allowance has been made for the receivables from related parties by the Company.

Management remuneration

During the period of 5 months, ended on 31 December 2013, payments to the management of the Company
amounted to LTL 441 thousand. The Management consists of administrative executive and deputy administrative
executive, and chief accountant. During the period of 5 months, ended on 31 December 2013, the management of
the Company did not receive any loans, guarantees; no other payments or property transfers were made or
accrued.

Capital management

The Company is obliged to upkeep its equity ratio of not less than 50 % of its share capital, as imposed by the Law
on Companies of Republic of Lithuania. As at 31 December 2013 the Company was in compliance with this
requirement. There were no other internally or externally imposed capital requirements on the Company.

Subsequent events

On 12 February 2014 the Government of the Republic of Lithuania adopted a resolution laying down that in
connection with the increase of the share capital of UAB EPSO-G {owned by the Government of the Republic of
Lithuania ), 31,575,724 ordinary non-certified shares of Amber Grid that have the nominal value of one litas each,
give 17.7% of votes in the general meeting of shareholders and that are held by the state by the right of property
shall be transferred to UAB EPSO-G as additional contribution.

On 21 February 2014 UAB EPSO-G acquired 31,575,724 ordinary registered non-certificated shares of the Company
that gave 17.7% of votes in the general meeting of shareholders of the Company.
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. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE ISSUER

Reporting period for which the report was drawn up - the Year 2013".

MAIN DATA
Name AB Amber Grid
Legal form Public company

Date and place of
registration

25 June 2013, Register of Legal Entities

Company code

303090867

Administrator of the
Register of Legal Entities

State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Authorized capital

LTL 178382514

Registered office

Savanoriy pr. 28, LT-03116 Vilnius

Telephone number

+370 5236 0855

Fax number +3705 236 0850
E-mail address info@ambergrid.lt
Website www.ambergrid.It

As from 1 August 2013, AB Amber Grid (hereinafter - Amber Grid, the Company) has been the Lithuanian
natural gas transmission system operator responsible for transmitting natural gas (transporting it via high-
pressure pipelines) to system users, safe operation and efficient development of the natural gas
transmission infrastructure, implementation of strategic natural gas transmission infrastructure projects.

On 18 July 2013, the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter referred to as the
NCCPE) adopted the decision to revoke the natural gas transmission license issued to AB Lietuvos Dujos and
issue a fixed-term Energy activity license to Amber Grid granting it the right to engage in natural gas
transmission activity from 1 August 2013 till the effective date of the decision of the NCCPE on the
appointment of the natural gas transmission system operator compliant with the requirements established
in sections 4 and 8 of the Law on Natural Gas. The license grants the right to the Company to engage in the
natural gas transmission activity in all regions of Lithuania.

Natural gas transmission system consists of 2 thousand km gas transmission pipelines, 66 gas distribution
stations, 3 gas metering stations and 2 gas compressor stations. Customers of the Company are large
(producers of electricity, central heating, industrial companies) and medium-sized businesses of Lithuania,
natural gas supply companies, which are provided with natural gas transmission services. The Company
employs employees with extensive gas system maintenance practice, necessary management knowledge
and skills.

The Company was established by the decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos
of 11 June 2013, whereby, in the implementation of the requirements of laws of the Republic of Lithuania
on unbundling the natural gas transmission activity, Terms and Conditions of the Spin-Off of AB Lietuvos
Dujos were approved and it was decided to unbundle the natural gas transmission activity from AB Lietuvos
Dujos, which continues its activities after the spin-off, along with the assets, rights and obligations assigned

1For a 5 month period ended on 31 December 2013;
Data on natural gas transmission and investments to the development of the transmission system provided for the entire year 2013.




to this activity. By establishing Amber Grid, legal, functional and organizational unbundling of the natural
gas transmission activity has been implemented.

In order to fully meet the requirements set forth in paragraph 8 of the Law on Natural Gas, the unbundling
of control of Amber Grid must be completed by 31 October 2014.

The unbundling of control of the transmission activity means that the same person or persons would not
have the right to directly or indirectly control the company carrying out any of the gas production or supply
functions, and to directly or indirectly control a transmission system operator or the transmission system,
or have any rights with respect to a transmission system operator or the transmission system (and vice
versa).

Shareholders of the Company will make decisions on the implementation of the unbundling of control.

Together with AB Lietuvos Dujos and the Finnish gas company Gasum Oy the Company controls UAB GET
Baltic - a company organizing trade on natural gas exchange. Amber Grid owns 32% of shares of UAB GET
Baltic.

BUSINESS ACTIVITY OF THE COMPANY

As a natural gas transmission system operator, the Company provides the following services to system
users, other operators and gas market participants:
e Natural gas transmission and transit via gas transmission pipelines;
e Natural gas transmission system balancing;
e Administration of funds allocated to cover costs of the construction and operation of the Liquefied
Natural Gas (hereinafter - the LNG) terminal, its infrastructure and connector.

Natural gas transportation via gas transmission pipelines
Transmission system and the development thereof

The transmission system consists of gas transmission pipelines, gas compressor stations, distribution
stations, gas metering stations, gas pipeline corrosion protection equipment, data transmission and
communication systems and other assets attributed to the transmission system (Map 1). The Lithuanian
gas transmission system is connected with the Kaliningrad Region of Russian Federation and gas
transmission systems of Belarus and Latvia. The largest pipeline diameter is 1,220 mm.



i~ : - - L
i - ™ o™

Fm = ., T | " | L
e o M'ﬂl . Fﬂ " . | { A TYIA
J ST | I
Teldiai o y -
'. ArGa m"gt E ,_ .—l:“ F-!I:tl.miﬂ- FHU'H}'.”I- L ;

Klaipéda |
SGDT o Visaginas
B Lt
: b
-, Silue l iy
b kmarga g
I.I y e
- W Siriintos b
L C "-.II 'S Jaunitnai .
1 ! - -
- . b it fadorys I
| o . pe i v
s e o [
. ; T ! Elektrénai 1 .
HALININGRAD REGION, HF 1 " Prignai " '.‘ RS
3 =0 Traki P
1 o
! BELARLS
\ = 1
A _ # Alytus saltininkalg,
. - 1 =1
- [
- -
b - :
FOLAND e 3 Drrus kiminkcal
s | "
o I
# — L
..
— Gan brarsmision ppelines [l Gas compredsor sationg O Townsconnecied oo the natual Gas sysen
=mm [rO{Ectsd gas pipelines . Ly disini isioen shafions 'E Fordens nof conracted 10 1ME naTura| gas sysiem
B Gas metsrmg stabos ? Mapr Iowrs cormnectad o BLRER | oaned natwal gas pmming (LGTE sysmem

the natural gas Sysram

Map 1: Natural gas transmission system
Strategic infrastructure projects

In 2013, the following strategic gas transmission infrastructure projects were being carried out:

- Enhancement of the capacity of the Latvia-Lithuania gas interconnection,

- Construction of the Jurbarkas-Klaipéda gas transmission pipeline and the Klaipéda distribution station No.
2,

- Enhancement of the capacity of the Klaipéda-Kieménai pipeline (construction of the pipeline Klaipéda-
Kursénai),

- The gas interconnection Poland-Lithuania.

On 14 October 2013, the European Commission (hereinafter - the EC) announced the first European Union
(hereinafter - the EU) List of Projects of Common Interests, which, among 248 energy projects, also includes
3 gas sector projects, in the implementation of which Amber Grid is involved. These are the projects of the



Poland-Lithuania gas interconnection, enhancement of the capacity of the pipeline Klaipéda—Kieménai and
enhancement of the capacity of the Latvia-Lithuania gas interconnection.

The list comprises energy projects important for the creation of the EU’s single internal market, thus for the
faster implementation thereof procedures of planning and permit issuance are speeded up and the right to
apply for financial assistance underthe Connecting Europe Facility is granted.

Enhancement of the capacity of the Latvia-Lithuania gas interconnection

In the beginning of 2013, the implementation of the project for the enhancement of the capacity of the
Latvia-Lithuania gas interconnection carried out together with AS Latvijas Gaze was completed. Capacity of
reverse interconnection was enhanced to more than 6 MCM per day. EU financial assistance was used for
the implementation of the project.

Construction of the Jurbarkas—Klaipéda Gas Transmission Pipeline and the Klaipéda Distribution Station
No. 2

On 15 November 2013, the construction of gas pipeline Jurbarkas—Klaipéda provided for in the National
Energy Strategy was completed. Until August 2013, the project had been carried out by AB Lietuvos Dujos.
A total of LTL 154 million (of which LTL 64 million in 2013 and LTL 81.7 million - in 2012) was invested in the
construction of the gas transmission pipeline Jurbarkas—Klaipéda and Klaipéda distribution station No. 2
throughout the entire period of the construction thereof, of which LTL 68.9 million was the assistance from
the EU Structural Funds.

By the implementation of the project, the “ring system” of the natural gas transmission was completed,
reliability and safety of natural gas transmission system of the region of the Western Lithuania was
enhanced and conditions for connecting the LNG terminal in Klaipéda to the Lithuanian transmission
system were created.

Enhancement of the Capacity of the Klaipéda—Kieménai Pipeline (construction of the gas pipeline
Klaipéda—Kursénai) (hereinafter — the KKP)

In June 2013, the Board of Directors of Amber Grid adopted a decision on the preparation of the special
plan and technical project for the construction of the second link of the gas transmission pipeline Klaipéda—
Kur$énai. A feasibility study was conducted. A business plan and cost-benefit analysis was drawn-up and a
proposal for cross-border cost allocation of the project was prepared in Q3 2013. Environmental impact
assessment (hereinafter - the EIA) programme was agreed upon and approved, EIA report was being
prepared, assessment of the location of the gas transmission pipeline route and its local alternatives was
carried out and information on the prepared concept of the special plan and report on the strategic
environmental impact assessment (SEIA) was published.

In October 2013, the Company submitted to the Lithuanian, Latvian and Estonian regulatory authorities a
request for investment along with the KKP business plan, cost-benefit analysis and a proposal for cross-
border cost allocation of the project with the aim to receive the EU financial assistance under the
Connecting Europe Facility for the project.

In December 2013, the KKP project was declared to be an economic project of national importance by the
resolution of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania. KKP is important for the implementation of the
Lithuanian national and EU energy policy objectives related to the diversification of natural gas supply and
ensurance of the safety thereof as well as promotion of competition in gas market. Upon the
implementation of the project it will be possible to fully utilize the capacities of the LNG terminal when
supplying gas for the needs of Lithuania and other Baltic countries.



The length of the KKP pipeline is 110 km, diameter - 800 mm, planned commissioning date - the end of
2015.

The Gas interconnection Poland-Lithuania (hereinafter - GIPL)

In July 2013, the EC was introduced with the GIPL feasibility study, in August procedures for the
performance of EIA works were started.

In October 2013, Amber Grid and GAZ-SYSTEM S.A. submitted to the Polish, Lithuanian, Latvian and
Estonian regulatory authorities a joint request for investments along with a business plan, cost-benefit
analysis and proposal for cross-border cost allocation of the project. The plan is that the EU assistance will
account for up to 75% of the value of eligible expenses.

The goal of the GIPL is to integrate the isolated Baltic gas markets into a single EU gas market and diversify
gas supply sources. The length of the GIPL pipeline will be about 534 km (357 km — in the territory of
Poland, 177 km — in the territory of Lithuania), the planned diameter is 700 mm, planned commissioning
date - the end of 2018. Upon the construction of the GIPL, a possibility to import to the Baltic countries up
to 2.6 BCM of natural gas per year would be created (with a possibility to increase this capacity up to 4.4
BCM per year having built additional compressor capacities).

Enhancement of the capacity of the Latvia-Lithuania gas interconnection

In the view of the implementation of projects diversifying gas flows carried out in the Baltic countries and
their impact on gas flows between Latvia and Lithuania and changes in gas markets of the region, the
project of the enhancement of capacities of the Lithuania - Latvia gas interconnection to up to 12 MCM per
day, included into the EU list of projects of common interests, will be implemented.

Investment plans

Taking into account consumer needs and national strategic documents, in 2013 the Company prepared and
approved with the NCCPE a ten-year network development plan of the natural gas transmission system
operator for 2013 - 2022, including therein the above-mentioned projects.

Strategic infrastructure projects implemented by Amber Grid have been included into the ten-year network
development plan 2013-2022 of the European Network of Transmission Operators (ENTSOG) and into the
Gas Regional Investment Plan 2014 -2023 of the transmission system operators from the BEMIP region.

In 2013 the Company continued the reconstruction and modernization of the natural gas transmission
system:
e Intelligent pig launcher and receiver in the Pabradé—Visaginas pipeline were installed;
e 7 line block valve remote control systems (SCADA) were installed and 8 line block valve units were
replaced;
e In 2013, the reconstruction of Maisiagala, GeguZiné and Taujénai metering and regulation stations
were completed (currently, 63 of 66 operated stations are new or substantially renovated);
e Reconstruction works of 11 cathodic protection system equipments were completed.



Maintenance of the transmission system

Maintenance of the transmission systems is governed by rules, regulations and carried out in strict
compliance with requirements established therein. In order to ensure the reliability and safety of the
transmission system, maintenance and repair works are constantly being carried out.

One of the most informative measures for assessing the condition of gas pipelines is applying intelligent
pigging procedures for gas transmission pipelines. In 2013, intelligent pigging procedures for a gas pipeline
to Utena distribution station (59.4 km section) were started, while the total length of gas pipelines
examined that way increased to 402 km.

Assessment of technical condition applying external methods was carried out for sections to Gargzdai,
Palanga, Kretinga, Plungé, TelSiai, N. Akmené and Papilé distribution stations (total length 106 km) of the
gas transmission pipeline PanevéZys-Siauliai-Klaipéda. In the view of the findings, repair works of these
sections of the pipeline will be carried out.

Works for the elimination of defects detected during the intelligent pigging procedures were continued in
the Minsk-Vilnius (67 km section), Kaunas-Kaliningrad (84 km section), Vilnius-Kaliningrad (81 km section)
and Vilnius-Panevézys-Riga (170 km section) gas transmission pipelines.

In 2013, repair works of the gas pipeline Vilnius-Kaunas were carried out, during which worn out line block
valves were replaced and the pipeline was prepared for intelligent piping procedures.

In 2013, repairs of separate pipeline sections of the gas transmission pipeline Ivaceviciai-Vilnius-Riga,
started back in 2011, were completed. 18.2 km - long section of the said pipeline was repaired - damaged
pipeline protective coating was repaired, the necessary depth, hydraulic tests in sections were carried out.

Defects in sections to Girininkai, Alytus distribution stations in the gas pipeline Vilnius-Kaunas detected in
2012 having flown around the gas pipeline track using laser gas leak detection equipment were eliminated.

Natural gas distribution volumes

In 2013, the Company and AB Lietuvos Dujos transported 2,667.1 MCM of natural gas to the Lithuanian
consumers via its natural gas transmission system. Upon the decrease of demand for natural gas for the
production of fertilizers, average annual temperature greater by +1.2°C, increased use of alternative fuel
and decreased gas consumption in the production of heat and electricity, natural gas transmission volumes,
compared with 2012, dropped by 18.4%.

In 2013, the greatest daily volume of gas transported from Belarus to Lithuania was 24 MCM, the greatest
daily volume supplied to the Kaliningrad Region of the Russian Federation by transit through Lithuania
amounted to 8.9 MCM and the greatest daily gas volume transmitted to users of Lithuania was 14.5 MCM.

In 2013, transit to the Kaliningrad Region of the Russian Federation amounted to 2,152 MCM of gas, in
2012 it was 2,167 MCM.

At the end of 2013, the Company had entered into 87 gas transmission service agreements with natural gas
transmission system users (natural gas users, natural gas distribution system operator, natural gas supply
companies, which supply gas up to consumer systems). As for natural gas supply companies, which trade
natural gas, but do not transport it via transmission systems, with such companies the Company had
entered into 6 natural gas balancing agreements.



Structure of transmitted natural gas volumes by transmission system users is illustrated in Chart 1.
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Chart 1: Structure of transmitted natural gas volumes by natural gas transmission system users in Lithuania, 2013

Natural gas tariffs regulation
Natural gas transmission service prices are subject to regulation.

In October 2013, the NCCPE determined the natural gas transmission price cap for a new 5 year regulatory
period (from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2018), which can be annually adjusted by the decision of the
NCCPE in the procedure prescribed in the Methodology for the Determination of the Prices Regulated by
the Government in the Natural Gas Sector.

On 30 October 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company approved specific natural gas transmission
service tariffs for 2014. In November 2013, the NCCPE unilaterally determined the Company’s natural gas
transmission service tariffs 0.5% lower than the price cap set by the NCCPE effective as from 1 January 2014
according to the forecast of transmission volumes for 2014 used in calculations of the price cap rather than
based on revised data of system users.

Natural gas transmission system balancing

Amber Grid ensures the balance in the natural gas transmission system. The Company purchases balancing
gas for a price determined by the NCCPE from a gas market participant, if the market participant has caused
excess gas in the transmission system, and sells balancing gas to a market participant if the latter caused
lack of gas in the transmission system.

In 2013, transmission system users and other gas market participants taking part in the transmission
system balancing balanced gas flows delivered to the transmission system and taken from the transmission
system, thus gas was not purchased or sold because of the imbalance.

Besides the balancing of flows of system users and other gas market participants, gas reserves in the
Company’s transmission system pipelines also range due to technological transmission system features as
well as technical reasons caused by gas flow deviations.

Administration of funds allocated for the construction and operation of the LNG terminal, its
infrastructure and connector

In the implementation of the requirements of the Law on the LNG terminal of the Republic of Lithuania and
its implementing legislation, the Company collects and administers funds allocated for the construction and
operation of the LNG terminal, its infrastructure and connector.



In accordance with the procedure established by the NCCPE, when paying for the natural gas transmission
services, natural gas system users who transported natural gas via the transmission system in 2013 paid an
extra component of the natural gas transmission tariff the LNG terminal surcharge.

The Company collects LNG terminal funds, administers and pays them out to a company implementing the
LNG terminal project or to an LNG terminal operator in the procedure prescribed by laws. By the decision of
the NCCPE, a part of the funds is allocated for covering administration expenses incurred by the Company.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

Natural gas is measured in units of volume (cubic meters m?) in the Lithuanian gas system, which has been
absolutely sufficient up until now.

However, with increasing diversity of alternative sources of gas supply and upon the launch of the LNG
terminal in Klaipéda, gas of more diverse composition and calorific value in line with quality requirements
approved in October 2013 by the order of the Ministry of Energy will be supplied to Lithuania. The
accounting thereof will also have to be carried out in units of energy - kilowatt-hours (kWh).

In order to accurately account the energy content of supplied and transported gas, a concept for the
reorganization of gas metering systems and the plan for the implementation thereof compliant with the
Description of Natural Gas Metering Procedure approved by the Order of the Ministry of Energy in
December 2013 was drawn up during the previous year.

The implementation of the plan has been started - all the necessary measuring instruments for determining
the composition of natural gas and calculating the calorific value thereof are expected to be installed by 1
November 2014.

In 2013, a study was conducted together with natural gas transmission system operators from Latvia,
Estonia and Finland on interaction of investment projects included into the EU list of projects of common
interest throughout the region. The study analyses the impact of the development of gas transmission
infrastructure for the ensurance of gas supply safety and reliability in the region, examines various gas
supply flow scenarios in the natural gas sectors of the countries of the Eastern Baltic Region.

In 2013, a study was conducted together with the natural gas transmission system operators from Latvia,
Estonia and Finland on interaction of investment projects included into the EU list of projects of common
interest throughout the region. The study analyses the impact of the development of gas transmission
infrastructure for the ensurance of gas supply safety and reliability in the region, examines various gas
supply flow scenarios in the natural gas sectors of the countries of the Eastern Baltic Region.

EMPLOYEES

As of 31 December 2013, the Company employed 356 employees, of which 32 (9%) were in management
positions, 190 (53.4%) were specialists and 134 (37.6%) - workers (Chart 2).

Employee rotation from the day of the establishment of the Company accounted for 2%.
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Chart 2: Employee distribution by groups, 2013.
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The average age of the Company’s employees was 43.8 years old (Chart 3), the average term of service -
12.5 years (Chart 4). 50.8% of the Company’s employees hold higher education degrees (Chart 5). Males
accounted for 82.3% and females for 17.7% of the Company’s employees. Since Amber Grid was
established having unbundled it from AB Lietuvos Dujos, 337 employees were transferred to the Company.
The accrual of seniority of all transferred employees was continued.
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Chart 3: Employee distribution by age groups, 2013.
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Chart 4: Employee distribution by term of service, 2013.
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Chart 5: Employee distribution by education, 2013.

Average monthly salary in the Company by employee groups, LTL

Average number of

Average monthly salary

Empl mpl f31
e i fgross, LTL)
Managing staff 32 8,795
Specialists 190 4,026
Workers 134 3,166
Total: 356 4,141

Table 1: Average monthly salary by employee groups, 2013.

Collective Bargaining Agreement

Collective Bargaining Agreement effective until 31 December 2014 is applied in the Company. Rights and
obligations of the Company’s employees applied in general practice are provided for in employment
agreements and the Collective Bargaining Agreement.

Trainings and apprenticeship opportunities

The Company devotes great attention to trainings and acquisition of skills and upholding them. In 2013,
124 employees attended general trainings, 130 employees took part in professional trainings. A total of
254, or 71.3% of all employees, attended trainings from the start of the Company’s operations.

In accordance with the cooperation agreement on practical trainings with AB Lietuvos Dujos Training
Centre, 11 people from energy sector companies were admitted for apprenticeship according to trainings
programs related to the operation of the gas transmission pipeline.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
The Company’s production activities have an impact on the environment. During the execution of gas
system repair works, in case of an accident or improper operation of the system, gas can get into the

atmosphere. This risk is minimized by the application of an integrated maintenance system.

The Company is implementing innovative accident, malfunction, gas loss, pollution prevention measures,
carries out the reconstruction of polluting objects and other necessary actions. In 2013, there were no
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accidents during which large volume of gas was emitted into the atmosphere causing damage to the
environment.

In September 2013, the Company approved the Environmental Policy.

Environmental management system in accordance with ISO 14000 standard requirements is planned to be
implemented in 2014. Amber Grid is a socially responsible company, which seeks to actively participate in
social life.

SPONSORSHIP PROGRAMMES

In 2013, the Company participated in various sponsorship programs. It rendered support to more than 10
institutions, organizations and their projects - Vilnius University Hospital Santariskés Clinic, Order of Malta
Relief Organization, students of Vilnius Gija youth school, sports club for residents of Vilnius with physical
disabilities, day care centre Feniksas, Vilnius Jonas LauZikas General Education Centre, etc.

INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

The Company is an associate partner of the European Network of Transmission System Operators for Gas
(hereinafter referred to as ENTSOG) (www.entsog.eu).

ENTSOG was established pursuant to Regulation (EC) No. 715/2009 of the European Parliament and Council
as an organization aimed at the cooperation of gas transmission system operators at the EC level. ENTSOG
is engaged in preparing the European gas network codes, approving a ten-year gas network development
plan of the European Community, general measures for network operation and carrying out other
functions.

The status of an associate partner grants the Company the right to take part in preparation of long-term
natural gas system development plans, allows for closer cooperation with other European gas transmission
system operators. The Company provides recommendations in the preparation of the European natural gas
network codes.

In 2013, the preparation of the Gas Regional Investment Plan 2014-2023 of the transmission system
operators from the BEMIP region — Gasum Oy (Finland), AS EG VG&rguteenus (Estonia), AS Latvijas Gaze
(Latvia), GAZ-SYSTEM S.A. (Poland), Energinet.dk (Denmark), Swedegas AB (Sweden) and Amber Grid
(Lithuania) - was started. The Company is the coordinator of the preparation of this plan.

In 2009-2013, an investment project was being carried out together with AS Latvijas Gaze, upon the
completion of which capacities of cross-border gas interconnector between Latvia and Lithuania were

enhanced.

The GIPL project is being implemented in cooperation with the Polish gas transmission system operator
GAZ-SYSTEM S.A.
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I. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

MAIN INDICATORS OF THE TRANSMISSION SYSTEM

2013

Volume of transported natural gas

Volume of transmitted natural gas (out of which the Company), MCM

2,667.1(934.4)

Volume of gas transported by transit (out of which the Company), MCM

2,152.4 (934.7)

Number of system users, at the end of the period 87

Operated system

Length of gas transmission pipelines, km 2,007

Number of gas distribution stations and gas metering stations, pcs. 69

Employees

Number of employees, at the end of the period 356
Table 2: Company’s performance indicators
COMPANY'’S KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS?

2013

Financial results (thousand LTL)
Sales revenues 74,101
EBITDA 35,755
EBIT 3,534
Profit before tax 2,425
Net profit 5,071
Net cash flows from operating activities 33,221
Investments 39,381
Net financial debt 160,483
Profitability ratios (%)
EBITDA margin 48.25
EBIT margin 4.77
Profit before tax margin 3.27
Net profit margin 6.84
Return on assets (ROA) 0.31
Return on equity (ROE) 0.42
Return on capital employed (ROCE) 0.25
Liquidity
Current ratio 1.00
Quick ratio 0.58
Leverage (%)
Equity to total asset ratio 73.37

%Financial indicators reflect a 5-month period ended on 31 December 2013.
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Financial debt to equity ratio 1491

Net financial debt to equity ratio 13.28

Market value ratios

Price-earnings ratio (P/E), times 83.90

Basic earnings per share, LTL 0.03

Table 3: Company’s financial indicators

The Company's financial ratios were calculated disregarding the assets and liabilities generated by the LNG
Terminal markup funds.

The financial statements for 2013 of the Company also include the financial results of UAB GET Baltic - a
joint venture controlled jointly with AB Lietuvos Dujos and the Finnish gas company Gasum Oy, which have
been accounted for under the equity method.

Revenues

In 2013, the revenues of the Company were LTL 74,101 thousand, of which 94.5% were revenues from the
transmission of natural gas via gas transmission pipelines to system users and transit to the Kaliningrad
Region of the Russian Federation.

The remaining part was revenues for the natural gas sold in the execution of transmission system reserves
management and balancing, and revenues for the administration of funds of the LNG terminal; also, a share
of previously received grants, with the help of which fixed assets of the Company were created,
corresponding to the useful life of those assets was recognized as revenues (Chart 6).

4 A

3.1% 2.4%

B Transmission to system
users
M Transit

M Natural gas sales
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Chart 6: Revenue structure, 2013.

Natural gas transmission revenues received from system users are divided into revenues for acquired
transmission capacity and revenues for transmitted natural gas volume (Chart 7).
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Chart 7: Structure of transmission revenues, 2013.

Revenues for the transmission of natural gas were received managing the natural gas reserve volumes
contained in the natural gas transmission system. Their constant fluctuations are affected by technological
features of the transmission system and gas flow deviations (imbalances) determined by technical reasons
and actions of system users and other gas market participants taking part in the transmission system
balancing. Decreasing natural gas reserves in the transmission system means that gas needs to be sold,
while increasing reserves means that it has to be purchased. In 2013, due to the imbalance caused by gas
market participants, natural gas was not bought or sold.

The Company is obliged under requirements of laws to administer funds of the LNG terminal. For more
information and disclosures about the accounting of funds of the LNG terminal, see the financial
statements of the Company for 2013.

Expenses

The Company’s expenses amounted to LTL 70,574 thousand in 2013.

The largest expenses of the Company were incurred due to the depreciation of fixed assets - LTL 32,221
thousand (or 45.7% of all expenses), repairs and maintenance - LTL 14,860 thousand (21.1%), payroll and
related social security expenses - LTL 10,314 thousand (14.6%) and expenses of natural gas - LTL 8,012
thousand (11.4%) (Chart 8).

The Company purchased natural gas for technological needs and for the change in natural gas reserves.
4 I
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Chart 8: Structure of expenses, 2013.
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Activity results

In 2013, profit before tax amounted to LTL 2,425 thousand, while profit before tax, interest, depreciation
and amortization (EBITDA) accounted for LTL 35,755 thousand (Chart 9).

Since the establishment of the Company, Amber Grid earned LTL 5,071 thousand net profit during 2013 and
this profit was LTL 2,646 thousand greater than profit before tax. The Company took advantage of
investment incentive provided for in the Law on Profit Tax and formed deferred profit tax assets, which
amounted to LTL 4,034 thousand.

The Company’s gas transmission activity is subject to regulation, thus the main reason for low profitability
of the Company is the fact that depreciation and amortization expenses in financial statements are much
greater than those recognized by the NCCPE when setting the natural gas transmission price cap. Chart 10
illustrates profitability ratios.
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Chart 9: Financial results, thousand LTL
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Chart 10: Profitability, per cent
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Investments

During 2013, LTL 91,840 thousand (during 2012 - LTL 110,740 thousand) was invested into the development
and modernization of the transmission system (from the beginning of 2013 till 31 July 2013 - by AB Lietuvos
Dujos, from 1 August 2013 till the end of 2013 - by Amber Grid). In 2013, 70% of funds was invested into
new gas system construction objects, 30% was allocated for investments into gas system reconstruction
and modernization.

49% of investments into the transmission system were financed from the EU financial assistance funds.
During 2013, assistance in the amount of LTL 45,108 thousand (in 2012 - LTL 23,778 thousand) was
received.

Amber Grid investments amounted to LTL 39,381 thousand since the establishment of the Company in
2013(Chart 11). The Company took over and continued investment projects planned and started by AB
Lietuvos Dujos.
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Chart 11: Investment structure, thousand LTL.

Assets

The value of assets amounted to LTL 1,748,927 thousand at the end of 2013. As of the end of 2013, the
non-current assets accounted for 90.6% and the current assets - for 9.4% of the total assets of the
Company.

During the period from August to December 2013, the value of non-current assets increased by 0.5%, or LTL
7,067 thousand, mostly due to investments into gas transmission pipelines and installations thereof. The
value of current assets increased by 38.7% (LTL 46,064 thousand). Amounts receivable from buyers
increased due to the seasonal nature - more gas is transported in winter time than during warm season.
Other amounts receivable and other financial assets increased mainly due to debts and funds of the LNG
terminal already received but not yet paid out.

Equity and liabilities
The Company’s equity increased by 0.42% (LTL 5,071 thousand) during August - December 2013 and at the

end of the year amounted to LTL 1,208,560 thousand. Equity at the end of the reporting period accounted
for 69.1% of the total assets of the Company.
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Amounts payable and liabilities increased by 9.74% (LTL 47,954 thousand) during August - December 2013
and at the end of the year amounted to LTL 540,367 thousand. Amounts payable increased mainly due to
accumulated and not yet paid LNG terminal funds. The increase in trade debts was mainly determined by
amounts payable to the Company’s contractors.

Financial debt of the Company as of the end of 2013 accounted for LTL 180,201 thousand and during
August - December 2013 remained essentially unchanged (Chart 12).

Retained earnings, including the profit received from the transmission activity of AB Lietuvos Dujos in
January-July 2013 and transferred to the Company under the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-Off
(LTL 9,996 thousand), amounted to LTL 15,067 thousand.
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Chart 12: Financial debt structure, thousand LTL.

Cash flows

The Company’s cash flows from its operating activities were positive in 2013 and amounted to LTL 33,221
thousand. Investment activities required investments in the amount of LTL 39,026 thousand, however, a
part of these investments was funded from the EU assistance funds. Annual cash flow of the Company was
positive and this allowed maintaining unchanged level of financial debts.

For more information on the financial results of the Company, see the Company’s financial statements for
2013.

References and additional notes on the data provided in the annual financial statements

Other information is presented in the notes of audited annual financial statements of Amber Grid for 2013.

BUSINESS PLANS AND FORECASTS

Strategic infrastructure and other projects aimed at the enhancement of the efficiency of the Company’s
activities and cost optimization will be implemented in 2014. In 2014, actions will be undertaken in order to
receive financial assistance for the implementation of GIPL and KKP projects under the EU’s Connecting
Europe Facility. Completion of the KKP project is planned by the end of 2015 and of the GIPL project - by
the end of 2018.

18



The forecast is that in 2014 the Company will transport via its transmission system about 2.5 BCM of
natural gas to consumers of Lithuania.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company faces the following main risks in the performance of its activities: regulation-related risk,
competition-related risk, natural gas purchase/ sale price fluctuation risk, credit risk, technology-related
risk and macroeconomic factors-related risk.

Information on gas purchase price fluctuation risk, credit risk and other financial risks is presented in
financial reports of the Company for 2013.

The macroeconomic factors-related risk

Lithuania’s economic situation and economic development trends, price of natural gas as a product to the
end-user have an impact on gas transmission volumes and investments into the development of gas
transmission pipelines. Natural gas transmission volumes that have been decreasing during the previous
years in Lithuania have a negative effect on the Company’s financial results. However, the Company’s
activity is subject to regulation, thus it, under the supervision of the NCCPE, is undertaking various
measures necessary for the ensurance of the stability, sustainability and development of its activities.

The regulation-related risk

The regulation-related risk is closely related to changes in the legal environment and decisions taken by
regulatory authorities. Natural gas transmission tariffs and investments into the natural gas transmission
systems are subject to state regulation. The Company directly cooperates with regulatory authorities and
takes an active part in the legal acts drafting process.

The competition-related risk

The Company’s activity results are affected by competition in the fuel market. Increasing consumption of
alternative fuel types replacing natural gas leads to decreasing demand for natural gas. High natural gas
prices also have an impact in decision-making with regard to the selection of alternative fuel types.

The technology-related risk

One of the main objectives of the Company is to ensure safe, reliable and efficient operation of the natural
gas transmission system. Quite a number of pipelines operated by the Company are 30 - 50 years old, thus
proper maintenance of the transmission system requires special attention. The Company has prepared a
strategy for the ensurance of safety and reliability of the transmission system and the activity plan for the
implementation thereof.

THE COMPANY’S INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.

To ensure that the financial statements are prepared correctly, Amber Grid has adopted the Accounting

Policies and Procedures Manual governing the principles, methods and rules of accounting and preparation
and presentation of financial statements. Moreover, seeking to ensure that financial statements are
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prepared in a timely manner, deadlines for presentation of accounting documents and preparation of
reports are regulated by internal rules approved by the Company.

“Four-eye” principle is followed in the preparation of the financial statements. Accounting Department is in
charge for overseeing the preparation of financial statements and final review thereof. Also, the Audit
Committee monitors the process of the preparation of the financial statements.

On 11 December 2013, shareholders of Amber Grid made a decision to form an Audit Committee and
approved the provisions on the formation of the Audit Committee and its activities. The composition of the
Audit Committee is indicated in part Ill of this annual report Management of the Company.

The following are the main functions of the Audit Committee:
e Monitor the Company’s financial reporting process;
e Provide recommendations to the Board of Directors related to the selection of an independent
audit company;
e Monitor the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems;
e Monitor how an independent auditor and audit company complies with the principles of

independence and objectivity, oversee the Company’s audit processes.

The Company has an established position of an Internal Auditor. The aim of the Internal Auditor is to help
implement the business goals of the Company by a systematic and comprehensive assessment of risk
management and internal control.
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.  MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

Information on the observance of the Code of Governance

The Company has disclosed the information regarding the observance of the provisions of the Code of
Governance. All the information is available on the Company’s website www.ambergrid.lt and the Central
Database of Regulated Information www.crib.It.

Authorized share capital

The authorized capital of the Company is LTL 178,382,514. It consists of 178,382,514 ordinary registered
shares with par value of LTL 1 each. In 2013, the par value of shares did not change. All shares are fully paid.

During 2013, the value of the authorized capital and the structure of shareholders did not change.
Shares and rights of shareholders

The number of shares granting votes in the General Meeting of Shareholders coincides with the number of
issued shares and amounts to 178,382,514 pieces. Shares of Amber Grid entitle to equal property and non-
property rights and not a single shareholder of the Company holds any special rights of control. In
accordance with the Bylaws of the Company, decisions on issuing new shares and on acquisition of own
shares shall be adopted exclusively by a resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Amber Grid has not been informed of any mutual agreements between shareholders that may limit the
transfer of securities and (or) voting rights. There are no restrictions of voting rights in the Company.

In 2013, the Company did not acquire its own shares and it did not conclude any transactions related either
to acquisition or disposal of its own shares.

Shareholders

The Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off of AB Lietuvos Dujos established that the shares of the Company
and AB Lietuvos Dujos continuing its activities after unbundling shall be distributed to all shareholders in
proportion to their shares in the authorized capital of AB Lietuvos Dujos, while only those persons, who
were shareholders on the day when Amber Grid was registered in the Register of Legal Entities, shall be
entitled to receive the shares of Amber Grid. The Company and its Bylaws were registered on 25 June 2013.

According to data of 31 December 2013, Amber Grid was controlled by 2,699 natural and legal Lithuanian
and foreign residents, 3 of them controlled share portfolios of the Company greater than 5%.
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Number of shares

Shareholder Office address/ company code held by the right of
ownership, pcs.
E.ON Ruhrgas International | Brusseler Platz 1, 45131 Essen, Germany/ 69,416,233
GmbH (Germany) HRB 21974
16 Nametkina St., Moscow, 66,112,761

OAOQ Gazprom (Russia) Russian Federation/ 1027700070518

Ministry of Energy of the = i ino br. 38, Vilnius, Lithuania/ 302308327 31,575,724

Republic of Lithuania

Small shareholders 11,277,796
Total: 178,382,514

Table 4: Shareholders of the Company

The structure of shareholders of the Company is illustrated in Chart 13.

4 N

® E.ON Ruhrgas
International GmbH

m OAO Gazprom

= Ministry of Energy of the
Republic of Lithuania

m Small shareholders

N J

Chart 13: Structure of shareholders as of 31 December 2013.

E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH is a holding company which is part of the E.ON Group. The E.ON Group is
one of the world’s largest energy companies. The activities of E.ON include, inter alia, energy generation
from traditional and renewable energy sources as well as exploration, supply, storage, sales, distribution of
natural gas and energy trading activities.

OAO Gazprom is a global energy company. Its activities include geological exploration, production,
transportation, storage, processing and marketing of natural gas, also, production and sales of condensing
gas and oil, gas as vehicle fuel, and trade in heat and electric energy.

The Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania is a state institution in charge of the energy sector
public administration functions (delegated to it by laws and other legislation) and the implementation of
state strategic goals and policies in the energy sector.

The Company’s shareholders — E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH, OAO Gazprom and the Republic of
Lithuania whose shares are held in trust by the Ministry of Energy of the Republic of Lithuania - jointly
control 93.7% of the Company’s shares and have a casting vote when making decisions at the General
Meeting of Shareholders.
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Restructuring of the Company’s control

In the implementation of the requirements of the EU’s Third Energy Package and Law on Natural Gas of the
Republic of Lithuania, natural gas transmission activity carried out by the Company will have to be
unbundled from the natural gas production and supply activity by 31 October 2014, unbundling the
ownership of the transmission system from natural gas companies engaged in production and supply
activities.

Pursuant to these legal acts, members of management bodies of the Company are not entitled to be
members of a management body or the representative body of companies engaged in production or supply
activities or a sole manager of these companies.

Shareholders of the Company E.ON Ruhrgas International GmbH and OAO Gazprom are engaged in the
natural gas production and supply activities, thus the reorganization of the Company’s control shall be
performed by 31 October 2014, as provided for by the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania and
its implementing regulations.

Data about trading in the Issuer’s securities on the regulated markets

As from 1 August 2013, the Company’s shares are traded on the regulated market; they are quoted on the
Secondary List of the NASDAQ OMKX Vilnius Stock Exchange.

Main data about Amber Grid shares

ISIN code LT0000128696
Symbol AMGI1L
Number of shares (pcs.) 178,382,514

Table 5: Main data about Amber Grid shares

In 2013, the turnover of the trading in the Company’s shares amounted to LTL 1.6 million, 696,871 shares
were disposed of through the concluded transactions.

In August-December 2013, OMX Baltic Benchmark Pl and OMXV indices of the Stock Exchange NASDAQ
OMX, reflecting stock price developments of securities of all companies listed on the Baltic States and
Vilnius Stock Exchanges correspondingly decreased by 3.36% and increased by 2.5%. Meanwhile, the value
of the Company’s shares increased by 8.11% over the same period. The Company’s share price dynamics is
presented in Table 6.

Opening price, Highest price per | Lowest price per Weighted average Closing price, LTL
LTL share, LTL share, LTL price per share, 30-12-2013
01-08-2013° 13-12-2013 02-09-2013 LTL

2.341 2.517 2.141 2.366 2.517

Table 6: Share price dynamics at NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, August-December 2013

Amber Grid share capitalization as at the end of 2013 amounted to LTL 449.0 million. Data of the
Company’s share price and turnover (August - December 2013) are presented in Chart 14.

3Since the trading of Amber Grid shares was started on 1 August 2013, the table indicates the closing price of the first trading day.
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Chart 15: Fluctuations of Amber Grid share price, OMX Vilnius and OMX Baltic Benchmark Pl Indices, August - December 2013

OMX Baltic Benchmark Pl and OMXV indices are total return indices that include all shares listed on the
Main and the Secondary lists of the stock exchanges. The indices do not include shares of those companies
where one shareholder controls 90% or more of the issued shares. The indices reflect the current situation
and developments on the Baltic States and Vilnius Stock Exchanges. Fluctuations of the Company’s share
price, OMX Vilnius and OMX Baltic Benchmark Pl indices (August - December 2013) are illustrated in
Chart 15.

Dividends

The payment of dividends to the shareholders of the Company depends on the profitability, investment
plans and the overall financial situation of the Company. Moreover, an obligation applied by banks by
default to obtain a respective bank’s approval prior to paying dividends to shareholders of the Company is
established by a credit agreement.

The General Meeting of Shareholders has not adopted any decision on the Profit Appropriation 2013.

Agreements with intermediaries of public trading in securities

On 26 June 2013, Amber Grid concluded an agreement with AB SEB bank regarding the accounting of
securities issued by the Company and the provision of services related to securities accounts.
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AB SEB bank details
Company code
Registered office address
Telephone number
E-mail

Website

112021238

Gedimino pr. 12, Vilnius, Lithuania
+3705 268 2800, short 1518
info@seb.It

www.seb.It

Management structure

The Company’s activities are governed by the Law on Companies, Law on Securities, the Bylaws of the
Company as well as other applicable legal acts of the Republic of Lithuania. The competence of the General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company, rights of the shareholders and the implementation thereof are as
prescribed in the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania and the Bylaws of the Company.

The Bylaws of the Company provide for the fact that the Bylaws may be amended by a decision of the
General Meeting of Shareholders taken by a majority vote that has to be no less than 2/3 of all the votes
carried by the shares held by shareholders attending the General Meeting of Shareholders.

The Bylaws provide for the following governing bodies:
e The Board of Directors,
e The Chief Executive Officer of the Company - General Manager.

According to the Bylaws, the Board of Directors of the Company consists of 5 (five) members elected for a
period of three years in accordance with the procedure provided for in the Law on Companies. Members of
the Board of Directors elect the Chairman of the Board. The Chairman of the Board of Directors and his
Deputy are elected for a period of two years by rotation. Members of the Board of Directors may be re-
elected for another term of office. Powers of the members of the Board of Directors and the fields of
activity of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company are as prescribed by the Law on Companies and the
Bylaws of the Company, there are no exceptions with regard to any powers of the members of the Board of
Directors or the Chief Executive Officer subject to additional notification.

The Company has no branches or representative offices.

Information about Amber Grid members of the Board of Directors, General Manager and Chief Accountant
is presented in Table 7.

Participation in the capital
of the Issuer

Position title AElul Start of term End of term sl o_f s Share of the
surname authorized
. votes held,
capital held, %
% (1]
Chairman of June 2013 June 2016 - -
the Board of @ Dr. Rainer Link
Directors
Deputy Dr. Aleksandr | June 2013 June 2016 - -
Chairman of  Frolov
the Board of
Directors

25



Member of the | Mario June 2013 June 2016 - -
Board of Nullmeier

Directors

Member of the | Dr. Aleksandras June 2013 June 2016 - -
Board of Spruogis

Directors

Member of the | Nikolay June 2013 June 2016 - -
Board of | Vasilyev

Directors

General Saulius Bilys June 2013 June 2016 - -
Manager

Chief Dzintra June 2013 - - -
Accountant Tamuliené

Table 7: Information about members of the Board of Directors, General Manager and Chief Financial Officer

During the reporting period, no pay-outs were calculated for members of the Board of Directors.

Salaries calculated for the General Manager and Chief Accountant of the Company during the reporting
period totalled LTL 209,032, averaging LTL 104,516 per person (General Manager and Chief Accountant).

Employment agreements of the General Manager of the Company and his Deputies establish agreements
providing for compensation should they resign or be dismissed for no valid reason, or should their

employment be terminated due to the reorganization of control of the Company.

Information about members of the Audit Committee is presented in Table 8.

Participation in the capital
.. . of the Issuer
AR Name Share of the
place of ! Start of term End of term . Share of the
surname authorized
employments . votes held,
capital held, %
% (1)
Independent . December 2013 | June 2016 - -
Vaida
member, UAB Kadergiene
AV Auditas g
Member, Valdemaras December 2013 | June 2016 0.00013 0.00013
Amber Grid Bagdonas

Table 8: Information about the members of the Audit Committee

Information on the transactions between associated parties is presented in the financial statements of the
Company for 2013.

The Company has not entered into any significant agreements, which are to take effect, change or
terminate upon the change in the Company’s control.

During the reporting period, the Company has not concluded any detrimental transactions (non-compliant
with the Company’s objectives, the existing normal market conditions, in breach of interests of the
shareholders or other groups of persons, etc.) or transactions concluded in presence of the conflict of
interest between the obligations to the Company of the executives, controlling shareholders or other
related parties of the Company and (or) their private interest and (or) other obligations.
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Material events after the end of the financial year

On 12 February 2014, the Government of the Republic of Lithuania adopted a resolution establishing that
31,575,724 non certified ordinary registered shares of AB Amber Grid owned by the state, with a par value
of LTL 1 each, granting 17.7% of votes in the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company are being
transferred to UAB EPSO-G as the additional contribution to the share capital of UAB EPSO-G with the
purpose to increase the share capital of UAB EPSO-G.

On 21 February 2014, UAB EPSO-G acquired 31,575,724 non certified ordinary registered shares of AB
Amber Grid, granting 17.7% of votes in the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company.
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IV.  MATERIAL EVENTS IN THE ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

In the performance of its obligations under the applicable laws governing the securities market, the
Company publishes material events and other regulated information EU-wide. Information published by
the Company can be found on the Company’s website (www.ambergrid.lt) and on the website of AB

NASDAQ OMX Vilnius (www.nasdagomxbaltic.com).

In 2013, Amber Grid*published the following information on material events:

Date Material event

31-01-2013 Regarding the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off of AB Lietuvos Dujos prepared
and submitted to the NCCPE for approval

28-02-2013 The Commission approved the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off of the natural gas
transmission activity of AB Lietuvos Dujos

07-03-2013 Regarding the publication of the Terms and Conditions of the Spin-off of AB Lietuvos
Dujos

15-05-2013 On convening the first General Meeting of shareholders of AB Amber Grid

11-06-2013 Regarding the resolution adopted by the First Meeting of shareholders of AB Amber
Grid

11-06-2013 Regarding resolutions of the Board of Directors of AB Lietuvos Dujos

19-06-2016 Regarding the consideration of information submitted in the documentation on the
Spin-off of AB Lietuvos Dujos to be equivalent to the information of the prospectus of
AB Amber Grid

26-06-2013 Regarding the registration of a new company AB Amber Grid established following
the Spin-off of AB Lietuvos Dujos and its Bylaws

27-06-2013 Regarding the AB Lietuvos Dujos transmission price cap and specific natural gas
transmission service tariffs effective to the new company AB Amber Grid

11-07-2013 Notice regarding changing the accounting records of AB Lietuvos Dujos shares

18-07-2013 Regarding the revocation of natural gas transmission license for AB Lietuvos Dujos
and issuance of a fixed-term natural gas transmission license to AB Amber Grid

01-08-2013 Notice regarding the inclusion of AB Amber Grid shares in the Secondary List of
NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

02-08-2013 Notification on the Spin-off of the assets, rights and obligations of AB Amber Grid
from AB Lietuvos Dujos

21-08-2013 On the preparation of the final Spin-off Balance Sheet

11-10-2013 On the natural gas price cap for 2014

31-10-2013 Pre-audited results of AB Amber Grid for Q3 of 2013

31-10-2013 Regarding new Tariffs for natural gas transmission services

31-10-2013 On convening an extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Amber Grid.

19-11-2013 New Tariffs set for natural gas transmission services

11-12-2013 Regarding resolution adopted by the Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders
of AB Amber Grid.

All public notices that are to be published in accordance with the procedure established by laws are posted
in the electronic publication of the Administrator of the Register of Legal Persons. Notifications on
convening a General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company as well as other material events are
published in accordance with the procedure established by the Law on Securities of the Republic of

*During the period from 1 January 2013 till 31 July 2013 notices on material events related to natural gas transmission
activities were published by AB Lietuvos Dujos
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Lithuania on the Central Database of Regulated Information www.crib.lt and the Company’s website
www.ambergrid.lt. Where shareholders’ holdings entitle them to at least 10% of the total voting rights,
notices to such shareholders on convening a General Meeting of Shareholders are sent in accordance with

the procedure established in the Bylaws of the Company.
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Disclosure form concerning the compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code for the Companies Listed on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius

Pursuant to Paragraph 3 of Article 21 of the LawSacurities of the Republic of Lithuania and Ite320f the Listing Rules of NASDAQ

OMX Vilnius, the public company AB Amber Grid discloses its ctiamze with the Corporate Governance Code for thm@anies Listed

on NASDAQ OMX Vilnius and with the specific provisions thereof. In cafénstances of non-compliance with the Code ohwiértain

specific provisions thereof it is indicated whigesific provisions are not complied with and dusvttat reasons.

PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS

YES/NO
INOT
APPLICABLE

COMMENTARY

Principle I: Basic Provisions

The overriding objective of a company should be t@perate in common interests of all the shareholderby optimizing over time

shareholder value.

1.1. A company should adopt and make public
company’s development strategy and objectives bgrhyt
declaring how the company intends to meet the éstsrof
its shareholders and optimize shareholder value.

thées

The strategy of development and objectives of
Amber Grid are set forth in a ten-year netw
development plan of the natural gas transmissisteay
operator, which is made public on the Compan
website. The Company updates its development g
depending on the market situation and the regua
environment developments.

AB
rk

y's
lans
tor

1.2. All management bodies of a company shouldiragt
furtherance of the declared strategic objectivesi@w of
the need to optimize shareholder value.

Yes

The activities of the governing bodies of thenfpany
are focused on the implementation of the strat
objectives provided for in the Company’s developtn
plan and the compliance with the regulat
environment.

1.3. A company's supervisory and management bodi¥es

should act in close co-operation in order to attaaximum
benefit for the company and its shareholders.

This recommendation is implemented by the Boarg
Directors and the General Manager of the Compan
Supervisory Board is not formed at the Company,
the shareholders’ interests are represented bipdlaed
of Directors of the Company, during regularly comeé
meetings of which information is provided on t
Company’s operation.

1.4. A company's supervisory and management bodi¥es

should ensure that the rights and interests ofopsrether
than the company’s shareholders (e.g. employeeditors,
suppliers, clients, local community), participatirig or
connected with the company’s operation, are dudpeeted.

The Company seeks to secure the interests of al
persons connected with the Company's activity. T
publicity of the Company's activity forms for th
interest holders conditions to participate in
governance of the Company in the manner preschilye
laws and in accordance with the Company's bylawsb
internal regulations.

Principle Il: The corporate governance framework
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The corporate governance framework should ensure thstrategic guidance of the company, the effectiversight of the company’s
management bodies, an appropriate balance and diglution of functions between the company’s bodiesprotection of the
shareholders’ interests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in taav on | NO The governing bodies of the Company are the Boérd o
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania — a gengral Directors and the General Manager. A Supervisory
shareholders’ meeting and the chief executive effid is Board is not formed at the Company. The General
recommended that a company should set up bothegizdl Manager of the Company is accountable to the Boérd
supervisory body and a collegial management bodye [T Directors. The General Manager of the Company is|no
setting up of collegial bodies for supervision and a member of the Board of Directors.
management facilitates clear separation of manageare The division of competencies and responsibilities
supervisory functions in the company, accountabitind among the governing bodies of the Company is s#t fo
control on the part of the chief executive officahich, in by the Company Bylaws, the regulations of the
its turn, facilitate a more efficient and transpearg governing bodies of the Company and in the General
management process. Manager's employment contract and in the Law |on
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘Law on Companies’).
2.2. A collegial management body is responsible tfee | Yes The Board of Directors of the Company is respoesibl
strategic management of the company and perforimesr ot for strategic management of the Company and adopts
key functions of corporate governance. key decisions with regard to Company management
provided for by the Company Bylaws, appoints the
General Manager of the Company, analyses |and
assesses the information on the Company’s operdtion

for in the Company Bylaws.

A collegial supervisory body is responsible for #féective | NO A Supervisory Board is not formed at the Comparhe T

supervision of the company’s management bodies. General Manager of the Company is accountabledd
Board of Directors of the Company, the members
which are not involved in day-to-day operation bé

The competence of the Board of Directors is pravigde

th
of

Company.
2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one gialle No A Supervisory Board is not formed at the Company.
body, it is recommended that it should be a superyi
body, i.e. the supervisory board. In such a cake,|t
supervisory board is responsible for the effecthanitoring
of the functions performed by the company’'s chief
executive officer.
2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be electgdtire | NO The procedure for setting up a collegial body eédiy
general shareholders’ meeting should be set upshodid the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Compgny
act in the manner defined in Principles Ill and Where a ensures the representation of interests of minority
company should decide not to set up a collegiaéstigory shareholders of the Company, accountability of this
body but rather a collegial management body, e bioard, body to the shareholders and objective supervision
Principles 1ll and 1V should apply to the boardlasg as the Company’s operation and its management bodies.
that does not contradict the essence and purpoghi®o The corporate governance framework ensures that a
body.! collegial body elected by the General Shareholders’

! Provisions of Principles Il and IV are more appbte to those instances when the general sharekbloeeting elects the

supervisory board, i.e. a body that is essentfaligned to ensure oversight of the company’s boatithe chief executive officer and
to represent the company’s shareholders. Howevease the company does not form the supervisayddaut rather the board, most
of the recommendations set out in Principles 1 & become important and applicable to the boardell. Furthermore, it should be

noted that certain recommendations, which are @irtssence and nature applicable exclusively & stipervisory boarde.g.

formation of the committees) should not be applied to the board, as the cognpetand functions of these bodies according to the
Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuar@ficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For instantemi3.1 of the Code
concerning oversight of the management bodies eppti the extent it concerns the oversight of thiefoexecutive officer of the
company, but not of the board itself; item 4.1k Code concerning recommendations to the managdroéies applies to the extent
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Meeting would function properly and effectively, ca
the rights conferred on this body should ensurectife
supervision of the Company’s management bodies
protection of interests of all the Company
shareholders.

A Supervisory Board is not formed at the Compamny,
the provisions of Principles Il and IV are betteiited
to cases where the General Meeting of Shareho
elects a Supervisory Board. Considering the sizthef
Company (the number of employees and the ye
turnover), a collegial management body of the Camgp
is set up out of 5 members, therefore, the funst
assigned to the Committees under the recommenda
are performed by the collegial management bodyf;its
an Audit Committee is also set up which is elecad
the Regulations of which are approved by the Gén

=)

and
'S

D

ders
arly
tion
se

era

Meeting of Shareholders. The Audit Committee

performs the functions provided for by the Law
Audit.
Please also refer to the comment under Item 3.6.

on

2.5. Company’s management and supervisory bodmsdh
comprise such number of board (executive directars)
supervisory (non-executive directors) board membikes
no individual or small group of individuals can doate
decision-making on the part of these bodies.

Yes

The Board of Directors of the Company comprise
members who are not involved in day-to-day opena
of the Company.

55
fio

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the supery
board should be appointed for specified terms suhje
individual re-election, at maximum intervals proattifor in
the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensurimgcessary
development of professional experience and suffityie
frequent reconfirmation of their status. A posdipilto
remove them should also be stipulated however
procedure should not be easier than the removaledtoe
for an executive director or a member of the mansege

board.

Yes

this

The members of the Board of Directors of the Comgp
are elected for a period of three years withoutdsipg
any restrictions on their re-election. The procedaf
recall of the members of the Board of Directorsthed
Company does not differ from the one provided for
law.

b

it relates to the provision of recommendationshis ¢ompany’s chief executive officer; item 4.4 kné ICode concerning independence
of the collegial body elected by the general megefiom the company’s management bodies is appbethé extent it concerns

independence from the chief executive officer.

2 Definitions‘executive directorand‘non-executive directorare used in cases when a company has only ongiebl®dy.



2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by geaeral
shareholders’ meeting may be a person whose cuare
past office constitutes no obstacle to conduct peddent
and impartial supervision. Where a company shoeldi
not to set up a supervisory board but rather trerdyat is
recommended that the chairman of the board andf

executive officer of the company should be a déifer
person. Former company’s chief executive officeoust

not be immediately nominated as the chairman of
collegial body elected by the general shareholdeesting.

Yes

thie

the

When a company chooses to departure from these

recommendations, it should furnish information dre
measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of
supervison.

[
the

The chairman of the Company’s Board of Directord
the chief executive officer of the Company (General liger)

is not the same person, the chairman of the Boér
Directors did not hold the position of tlkkief executive

officer of the Company (General Manageprior to
appointing him on the position of the chairman.

Principle 1lI: The order of the formation of a coll egial body to be elected by a general shareholdersieeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be lected by a general shareholders’ meeting should sare representation of
minority shareholders, accountability of this bodyto the shareholders and objective monitoring of theompany’s operation and its

management bodies.

3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegiadly to
be elected by a general shareholders’ meetingi(tagter in
this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial bodghould
ensure objective and fair monitoring of the compsan
management bodies as well as representation ofrityin
shareholders.

Yes

o <

In compliance with the Company Bylaws, the collég

governing body of the Company - the Board
Directors - is elected by the General Meeting
Shareholders. On 11 June 2013, the Board of Dire

of the Company was elected from candidates nondn
by three shareholders of the Company, each of wh

separately, was not a controlling shareholder. Bbard
of Directors simultaneously performs the functidrite

objective and impartial monitoring of the Gene
Manager's performance through the regular heamfigs
the information presented by the General Managef

key issues of the business activities of the Compan

a
of
of
rto
ate
ich

ral

on

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to be
members of a collegial body, information about tth
education, qualification, professional backgroupdsitions
taken and potential conflicts of interest shoulddiselosed
early enough before the general shareholders’ ngpetd
that the shareholders would have sufficient timenttke an
informed voting decision. All factors affecting th
candidate’s independence, the sample list of wisiclet out
in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed
collegial body should also be informed on any sgbeat
changes in the provided information. The colledialdy
should, on yearly basis, collect data providechis item on
its members and disclose this in the company's aln
report.

cofas/No

e

Th

The Company discloses the information in accordg

with provisions of the Law on Companies.

nce

3 Attention should be drawn to the fact that in sitaation where the collegial body elected by teeegal shareholders’ meeting is the
board, it is natural that being a management bbdlgauld ensure oversight not of all managementdsoaf the company, but only of

the single-person body of management, i.e. the eowlip chief executive officer. This note shall apiol respect of item 3.1 as well.



3.3. Should a person be nominated for members
collegial body, such nomination should be followmdthe
disclosure of information on candidate’s particu
competences relevant to his/her service on theegiall
body. In order shareholders and investors are &bl
ascertain whether member’'s competence is furthevast,
the collegial body should, in its annual reporsctbse the
information on its composition and particular conepees
of individual members which are relevant to theirvice on
the collegial body.

nfYas

lar

3%

The Company makes public the information on
composition of the Board of Directors and the posg
held by the members of the Board of Directors ie

the

th

Company’s annual report and on the Company’s

website. At the General Meeting of Shareholders,
candidates’ positions held are specified.

th

3.4 In order to maintain a proper balance in termshef
current qualifications possessed by its membeesdésired
composition of the collegial body shall be deteredirwith
regard to the company’s structure and activitiesl have
this periodically evaluated. The collegial body sldo
ensure that it is composed of members who, as dewl
have the required diversity of knowledge, judgmend
experience to complete their tasks properly. Thenbers of
the audit committee, collectively, should have a&erg
knowledge and relevant experience in the fieldfiraince,
accounting and/or audit for the stock exchangeedis
companies. At least one of the members of the renation
committee should have knowledge of and experiendbe
field of remuneration policy.

tYes

—

All the members of the Board of Directors of the
Company are practicing, competent and experienced
managers, and four members of the Board of Diregtor

hold management positions in leading companiesi®f t

sector.

The members of the Audit Committee of the Comp

any

were appointed aiming to ensure that the Audit

Committee, collectively, should have a rec
knowledge and relevant experience in the fields
finance, accounting and/or audit for the stock exgle
listed companies.

ent
of

3.5. All new members of the collegial body should
offered a tailored program focused on introducingeanber
with his/her duties, corporate organization andvais.
The collegial body should conduct an annual review
identify fields where its members need to updaéir thkills
and knowledge.

bYes

Please refer to the comment under Item 3.4.

3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicfsnterest
related with a member of the collegial body areoine=d
properly, the collegial body should comprise a isight*
number of independehimembers.

No

The members of the Board of Directors, on the datdection
and subsequently, held positions at the sharet®lddrich
nominated them. The shareholder OAO Gazprom and

the

Company have important business links — the Company

transports gas to the Kaliningrad Region of the skus
Federation.

4 The Code does not provide for a concrete numbendgpendent members to comprise a collegial bibny codes in foreign

countries fix a concrete number of independent nemfe.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members ottftlegial body) to comprise the
collegial body. However, having regard to the ntywef the institution of independent members irhuénia and potential problems in
finding and electing a concrete number of indepehdeembers, the Code provides for a more flexibedimg and allows the

companies themselves to decide what number of erdignt members is sufficient. Of course, a largenber of independent
members in a collegial body is encouraged andosifistitute an example of more suitable corporategmnce.

5t is notable that in some companies all membgtsecollegial body may, due to a very small numifeminority shareholders, be
elected by the votes of the majority shareholdex faw major shareholders. But even a member ofdhegial body elected by the

majority shareholders may be considered indeperifieatshe meets the independence criteria seahdhe Code.

5



3.7. A member of the collegial body should be coed to
be independent only if he is free of any busin&asily or

other relationship with the company, its contrali
shareholder or the management of either, that eseat
conflict of interest such as to impair his judgmesince all
cases when member of the collegial body is likely

Not

s applicable

become dependant are impossible to list, moreqver,

relationships and circumstances associated with
determination of independence may vary amor
companies and the best practices of solving trablpm are
yet to evolve in the course of time, assessment
independence of a member of the collegial body Ishba
based on the contents of the relationship and mistances
rather than their form. The key criteria for idéyitig
whether a member of the collegial body can be censd
to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or member ef
board (if a collegial body elected by the gene
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board
the company or any associated company and
not been such during the last five years;

the
gst

of

ral
of
has

2) He/she is not an employee of the company or spme

any company and has not been such during

the

last three years, except for cases when a member

of the collegial body does not belong to the sern

ior

management and was elected to the collegial Hody

as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been not recei
significant additional remuneration from th

ing

company or associated company other than

remuneration for the office in the collegial bod

y.

Such additional remuneration includes
participation in share options or some other

performance based pay systems; it does

not

include compensation payments for the previpus

office in the company (provided that such

payment is no way related with later position)

per pension plans (inclusive of deferred

compensations);

4)He/she is not a controlling shareholder
representative of such shareholder (control
defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EH
Article 1 Part 1);

or
as
C

5) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated

company within the past year directly or as
partner, shareholder, director or super

employee of the subject having such relationsh

A subject is considered to have business relat
when it is a major supplier or service provid

(inclusive of financial, legal, counseling and

a
ior
p.
ons
er

consulting services), major client or organization

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.6.




receiving significant payments from the comp3g
or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the laset
years, partner or employee of the current
former external audit company of the company
associated company;

7) Hel/she is not an executive director or member ef
board in some other company where execu
director of the company or member of the bo
(if a collegial body elected by the gene
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board
non-executive director or member of
supervisory board, he/she may not also have
other material relationships with executi
directors of the company that arise from th
participation in activities of other companies
bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a membe
the collegial body for over than 12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an executivectbre
or member of the board (if a collegial bo
elected by the general shareholders’ meeting ig
supervisory board) or to any person listed
above items 1 to 8. Close relative is considere
be a spouse (common-law spouse), children
parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes indepecé is
fundamentally an issue for the collegial body ftsed
determine. The collegial body may decide that, desp
particular member meets all the criteria of indefmrte
laid down in this Code, he cannot be conside
independent due to special personal or companterk
circumstances.

ive
ard

) is
he
any
e
leir

r of

dy
the
n

d to
and

Not
applicable

red

[

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.6.

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the gale|
body has come to in its determination of whethe
particular member of the body should be considéoete
independent should be disclosed. When a persol
nominated to become a member of the collegial by,
company should disclose whether it considers thsopeto
be independent. When a particular member of thiegial
body does not meet one or more criteria of indepeoe set
out in this Code, the company should disclosecigsons for|
nevertheless considering the member to be indepénbie
addition, the company should annually disclose twh
members of the collegial body it considers to
independent.

Not
applicable

nois

ic
be

Please refer to comment under ltem 3.6.




3.10. When one or more criteria of independencesetn | Not Please refer to comment under Item 3.6.
this Code has not been met throughout the year,| gygplicable
company should disclose its reasons for considedng
particular member of the collegial body to be inelegent.
To ensure accuracy of the information disclosedelation
with the independence of the members of the calldzpdy,
the company should require independent memberse h
their independence periodically re-confirmed.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a colldmdly for | Not Please refer to the comment under Item 3.6.
their work and participation in the meetings of ttedlegial | applicable
body, they may be remunerated from the companyiddfi
The general shareholders’ meeting should approwe| th
amount of such remunerati

Principle 1V: The duties and liabilities of a collggial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeg

The corporate governance framework should ensure mper and effective functioning of the collegial bog elected by the genera
shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to ¢h collegial body should ensure effective monitoriigof the company’s
management bodies and protection of interests oflahe company’s shareholders.

4.1. The collegial body elected by the generalefhaiders’ | Yes In accordance with the Company Bylaws, the Compal
meeting (hereinafter in this Principle referred de the annual report is subject to approval by the BodrBioectors

‘collegial body’) should ensure integrity and trpasency of of the Company. The Company’s annual financialeshants,
the company’s financial statements and the corslystem. the draft profit (loss) appropriation are subjerahalysis and
The collegial body should issue recommendationsh® assessment by the Board of Directors of the CompéAfigr

company’s management bodies and monitor and cotfieq| the aforesaid procedures, the financial statemehts,draft
company’s management performasice. profit (loss) appropriation to together with thepegved annua

report are submitted for approval to the Generaktihg of
shareholders. Quarterly reports on the resulthi®feconomic|
activity of the Company (presented by the Compa@F®O)
are subject to analysis and assessment by the Bofa
Directors of the Compan

ny

o

61t is notable that currently it is not yet complgtelear, in what form members of the supervisopatdd or the board may

be

remunerated for their work in these bodies. The bawCompanies of the Republic of Lithuan@fficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574)
provides that members of the supervisory boardhehbard may be remunerated for their work in thgesvisory board or the board
by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the eraprescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. frailme company’s profit. The
current wording, contrary to the wording effectivefore 1 January 2004, eliminates the exclusiveirement that annual bonuses
(tantiems) should be thanly form of the company’s compensation to members efsthpervisory board or the board. So it seems that
the Law contains no prohibition to remunerate memloé the supervisory board or the board for theirk in other forms, besides

bonuses, although this possibility is not exprestiyed either.

7 See Footnote 3.

8 See Footnote 3. In the event the collegial bodctel by the general shareholders’ meeting is therdh it should provid
recommendations to the company’s single-person bbdyanagement, i.e. the company’s chief execuffieer.

8
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4.2. Members of the collegial body should act iodjfaith, | Yes According to the information available to the Compgaall the

with care and responsibility for the benefit and the members of the Board of Directors act in good fddththe
interests of the company and its shareholders ik benefit and in the interests of the Company andjarded by
regard to the interests of employees and publidanel the interests of the Company and not by their peivaterests
Independent members of the collegial body shouldiaer or by interests of any third parties, and are sepkd maintain
all circumstances maintain independence of thedlyais, independence in decision-making.

decision-making and actions (b) do not seek andgcany
unjustified privileges that might compromise thei
independence, and (c) clearly express their olojestj
should a member consider that decision of the gialle
body is against the interests of the company. $hau
collegial body have passed decisions independentbae
has serious doubts about, the member should madiate
conclusions. Should an independent member resagn ffris
office, he should explain the reasons in a lettlehr@ssed tq
the collegial body or audit committee and, if nscey,
respective company-not-pertaining body (institution

=

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time antes
attention to perform his duties as a member ofctiikegial
body. Each member of the collegial body shouldtliother
professional obligations of his (in particular any
directorships held in other companies) in such anea
they do not interfere with proper performance dfiekiof a
member of the collegial body. In the event a mentdf¢he
collegial body should be present in less than & lwdlthe
meetings of the collegial body throughout the ficiahyear
of the company, shareholders of the company shoeld
notified.

4.4, Where decisions of a collegial body may have Yes
different effect on the company’s shareholders,cihitegial
body should treat all shareholders impartially &aidy. It

should ensure that shareholders are properly irddrion
the company’s affairs, strategies, risk managensamd
resolution of conflicts of interest. The companysid have
a clearly established role of members of the ca@ldgody
when communicating with and committing to sharebko$d

9 It is notable that companies can make this reqnérg more stringent and provide that shareholdesald be informed about failure
to participate at the meetings of the collegialypidfor instance, a member of the collegial bgahrticipated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of
the meetings. Such measures, which ensure actitieipation in the meetings of the collegial bodye encouraged and will constitute
an example of more suitable corporate governance.



45. It is recommended that transactions (exq
insignificant ones due to their low value or comigd when
carrying out routine operations in the company undwmial
conditions), concluded between the company and
shareholders, members of the supervisory or maga
bodies or other natural or legal persons that exemay

exert influence on the company’s management shbald

subject to approval of the collegial body. The diexi
concerning approval of such transactions shoulddmmed
adopted only provided the majority of the indepenrtd
members of the collegial body voted for such asleni

epes

its
n

o

[¢)

4.6. The collegial body should be independent iasjray
decisions that are significant for the company'sragions
and strategy. Taken separately, the collegial &bthuld be
independent of the company’s management b&tlies
Members of the collegial body should act and passstbns
without an outside influence from the persons wilawyeh
elected it.

Yes

Companies should ensure that the collegial body itd Yes

committees are provided with sufficient administ@tand
financial resources to discharge their duties,udiclg the
right to obtain, in particular from employees ofet
company, all the necessary information or
independent legal, accounting or any other advicéssues
pertaining to the competence of the collegial badd its
committees. When using the services of a consultétht a
view to obtaining information on market standards
remuneration systems, the remuneration committeelgH
ensure that the consultant concerned does noteasame
time advice the human resources department, exec
directors or collegial management organs of the paom
concernet

=

to spek

uti

The members of the Board of Directors, on the datdection
and subsequently, held positions at the sharetlarich
nominated them.

Pursuant to the Law on Audit and Resolution No1Kef@1
August 2008 of the Securities Commission of theURdép of
Lithuania ‘On Requirements for Audit Committeesh, the
reporting year, an Audit Committee has been forraedhe

Company. A Nomination Committee and a Remunera]
Committee were not established at the Company,r {

functions are performed by the Board of Directors.
The rights and duties of the Audit Committee amvjated for
by the Audit Committee Formation and Work Regulasi@as
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

tion
hei

10 In the event the collegial body elected by theegehshareholders’ meeting is the board, the recemaation concerning its
independence from the company’s management bogies to the extent it relates to the independdrara the company’s chief

executive officer.
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4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be aniged in a|
manner that independent members of the collegialy b
could have major influence in relevant areas with@nces|
of occurrence of conflicts of interest are veryhiguch
areas to be considered as highly relevant are sssfi€
nomination of company’s directors, determination

directors’ remuneration and control and assessnun
company'’s audit. Therefore when the mentioned ssue
attributable to the competence of the collegial ypad is

recommended that the collegial body should estal
nomination, remuneration, and audit committée
Companies should ensure that the functions ataibetto
the nomination, remuneration, and audit committaes
carried out. However they may decide to merge th
functions and set up less than three committeesudh case
a company should explain in detail reasons behhmzl
selection of alternative approach and how the &etde
approach complies with the objectives set forthtlier three
different committees. Should the collegial body thie
company comprise small number of members, the imet
assigned to the three committees may be performeitieo
collegial body itself, provided that it meets corsjion

requirements advocated for the committees and

adequate information is provided in this respest.stich
case provisions of this Code relating to the coreeg of
the collegial body (in particular with respect teeir role,
operation, and transparency) should apply, wheevaat,
to the collegial body as a whole.

Not
capplicable

of
t

S

ese

—

that

Please refer to comments under ltems 2.4 and 4.6.

4.8. The key objective of the committees is to éase
efficiency of the activities of the collegial botly ensuring
that decisions are based on due consideration taielp
organize its work with a view to ensuring that trezisions
it takes are free of material conflicts of inter&sbmmittees
should exercise independent judgement and integityn
exercising its functions as well as present théegal body
with recommendations concerning the decisions
collegial body. Nevertheless the final decision lishee
adopted by the collegial body. The recommendation
creation of committees is not intended, in pringipto
constrict the competence of the collegial bodycoremove
the matters considered from the purview of the egpdl
body itself, which remains fully responsible for et
decisions taken in its field of competence.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comments under Iltems 2.4 and 4.6.

4.9. Committees established by the collegial bdayukd
normally be composed of at least three members. In
companies with small number of members of the gale
body, they could exceptionally be composed of two
members. Majority of the members of each committee
should be constitud from independent members of 1

Not
applicable

Please refer to comments under Items 2.4 and 4.6.
In accordance with Resolution No1K-18 of 21 Aug2@8 of
the Securities Commission of the Republic of LitmagdOn
Requirements for Audit Committees’, the Audit Cortiee is
composed of two members.

The Board of Directors of the Company comprisesehimers

The Law of the Republic of Lithuania on Audifficial Gazette 2008, No 82-53233) determines that an Audit
Committee shall be formed in each public interasity (including, but not limited to public compasi whose securities
are traded in the regulated market of the Repufllgthuania and/or any other member state ).

11




collegial body. In cases when the company choosetn
set up a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of non-etiee
directors. Chairmanship and membership of the cdtees
should be decided with due regard to the needdorerthat
committee membership is refreshed and that undiamce
is not placed on particular individuals. Chairmapsind
membership of the committees should be decided duith
regard to the need to ensure that committee meimipess
refreshed and that undue reliance is not placgohaticular
individuals

which are not involved in day-to-day operation o t
Company.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should
determined by the collegial body. Committees sha
perform their duties in line with authority delegdtto them
and inform the collegial body on their activitiesidal
performance on regular basis. Authority of everynouttee
stipulating the role and rights and duties of tlenmittee
should be made public at least once a year (asopdtte

information disclosed by the company annually os |i

corporate governance structures and practices).p@oies
should also make public annually a statement bgtiexj
committees on their composition, number of meetiagd
attendance over the year, and their main activittasdit
committee should confirm that it is satisfied withe
independence of the audit process and describ8ybtie
actions it has taken to reach this conclusion.

ddot
uapplicable

=3

Please refer to comments under ltems 2.4 and 4.6.

4.11. In order to ensure independence and imp#ytaflthe
committees, members of the collegial body thanate
members of the committee should commonly havetd tag
participate in the meetings of the committee ohigvited
by the committee. A committee may invite or demand
participation in the meeting of particular officensexperts.
Chairman of each of the committees should have a
possibility to maintain direct communication withet
shareholders. Events when such are to be perfoshmadd
be specified in the regulations for committee atiés.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comments under ltems 2.4 and 4.6.
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4.12. Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committéewdd
be the following:

« Identify and recommend, for the approval of tloiegial
body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The nautiom
committee should evaluate the balance of skillewkadge
and experience on the management body, prepa
description of the roles and capabilities requidssume g
particular office, and assess the time commitmepeeted.

Not
applicable

e a

Nomination committee can also consider candidates t

members of the collegial body delegated by theediwders
of the company;

e Assess on regular basis the structure, size, asitign
and performance of the supervisory and manage
bodies, and make recommendations to the collegidl k
regarding the means of achieving necessary changes;

e Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge

experience of individual directors and report ois tio the
collegial body;

« Properly consider issues related to successampig;

« Review the policy of the management bodies ftection
and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider prafsoby
other parties, including management and sharetsl
When dealing with issues related to executive trscor
members of the board (if a collegial body electgdtle
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisosyd)oand
senior management, chief executive officer of thmpgany
should be consulted by, and entitled to submit psafs to
the nomination committee.

nent

and

ler

Please refer to comments under Items 2.4 and 4.6.

4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration commigkeuld
be the following:

« Make proposals, for the approval of the collediadly, on
the remuneration policy for members of managemedids
and executive directors. Such policy should addrbs
forms of compensation, including the fixed remutiera
performance-based remuneration schemes, pe
arrangements, and termination payments. Propd
considering performance-based remuneration sche
should be accompanied with recommendations on
related objectives and evaluation criteria, withview to
properly aligning the pay of executive director anémbers
of the management bodies with the long-term intere$
the shareholders and the objectives set by thegiallbody;
« Make proposals to the collegial body on the irdlial
remuneration for executive directors and member
management bodies in order their remunerations
consistent with company’s remuneration policy ate
evaluation of the performance of these personseroed.
In doing so, the committee should be properly imfed on
the total compensation obtained by executive direcand
members of the management bodies from the affilia
companies;

« Ensure that remuneration of individual executi@ctors
or members of management body is proportionatehéo
remuneration of other executive directors or membar
management body and other staff members of the @oynp
« Periodically review the remuneration policy foreeutive
directors or members of management body, includirey
policy regarding share-based remuneration, and
implementation;

» Make proposals to the collegial body on suitabkenfo of

Not
applicable

sion
sals
mes
the

of
are

—

ite

—

its

Please refer to comments under ltems 2.4 and 4.6.
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contracts for executive directors and members of
management bodies;

« Assist the collegial body in overseeing how tlhenpany
complies with applicable provisions regarding
remuneration-related information disclosure (in tioatar
the remuneration policy applied and individy
remuneration of directors);

« Make general recommendations to the executivecttirs
and members of the management bodies on the lexe
structure of remuneration for senior managemend¢fised
by the collegial body) with regard to the respeet]
information provided by the executive directors 4
members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and othereshased
incentives which may be granted to directors orenot
employees, the committee should:

« Consider general policy regarding the grantingttoé
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock optiand
make any related proposals to the collegial body;

¢ Examine the related information that is given the
company’s annual report and documents intendedtHer
use during the shareholders meeting;

« Make proposals to the collegial body regardirg ¢hoice
between granting options to subscribe shares antiga
options to purchase shares, specifying the reafangs
choice as well as the consequences that this chage

4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributatdethe

competence of the remuneration committee, the cdt@eni

should at least address the chairman of the calldgidy
and/or chief executive officer of the company fbreit
opinion on the remuneration of other executive daes or

members of the management bodies.

4.13.4. The remuneration committee should reporthen
exercise of its functions to the shareholders amgiesent
at the annual general meeting for this purpose.

al
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4.14. Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee shooédthe
following:

« Observe the integrity of the financial informattiprovided
by the company, in particular by reviewing the velece
and consistency of the accounting methods usedhby
company and its group (including the criteria fdre {
consolidation of the accounts of companies in tloeig);

« At least once a year review the systems of imecontrol
and risk management to ensure that the key riskdugive
of the risks in relation with compliance with exisf laws
and regulations) are properly identified, managedl
reflected in the information provided;

« Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit fuant among
other things, by making recommendations on thectete
appointment, reappointment and removal of the lofatie
internal audit department and on the budget of
department, and by monitoring the responsivenesthef
management to its findings and recommendationsul8h
there be no internal audit authority in the compahg need
for one should be reviewed at least annually;

« Make recommendations to the collegial body relatéth
selection, appointment, reappointment and remof¥ahe
external auditor (to be done by the general shidehs
meeting) and with the terms and conditions of

engagement. The committee should investigate mns
that lead to a resignation of the audit companywditor
and make recommendations on required actions ifn

situations;

¢ Monitor independence and impartiality of the entd
auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit comps

compliance with applicable guidance relating to thi@tion
of audit partners, the level of fees paid by thepany, and
similar issues. In order to prevent occurrence atemal
conflicts of interest, the committee, based on ahditor’s
disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations pajdthe
company to the auditor and network, should at iatles
monitor nature and extent of the non-audit servieis/ing
regard to the principals and guidelines establishetie 16
May 2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/590/EC,
committee should determine and apply a formal po
establishing types of non-audit services that aag
excluded, (b) permissible only after
committee, and (c) permissible without referral ttoe
committee;

* Review efficiency of the external audit processd a
responsiveness of management to recommendations imad

the external auditor's management letter.

4.14.2. All members of the committee should be ifirad
with complete information on particulars of accangt
financial and other operations of the company. Camyjs
management should inform the audit committee of
methods used to account for significant and unu
transactions where the accounting treatment magpkee to
different approaches. In such case a special ceraidn
should be given to company’s operations in offsluameters
and/or activities carried out through special psmweehicles|
(organizations) and justification of such operagion

Not
applicable

the

o

his

sucC

the
ic
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review by the

the

sual

4.14.3. The audit committee should decide whether

participation of the chairman of the collegial bodief
executive officer of the company, chief financifficer (or
superior employees in charge of finances, treasang

accounting), or internal and external auditors ime t

meetings of the committee is required (if requiredhen).

Please refer to comments under Items 2.4 and 4.6.

Pursuant to the Law on Audit and Resolution No1Kef@1
August 2008 of the Securities Commission of the URdip of
Lithuania ‘On Requirements for Audit Committeesh, Audit
Committee has been formed at the Company. Key ifumebf
the Audit Committee: monitoring the efficiency dietinternal
control, internal audit and
monitoring the process of execution of its functioby

external audit and the observance of the principbés

independence and objectivity by the audit companwell as
other audit committee functions prescribed by aglie legal
acts of the Republic of Lithuania.

risk management syste
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The committee should be entitied, when needed, ¢etm

with any relevant person without executive direstand
members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should loeirsel with
not only effective working relationship with managent,
but also with free access to the collegial bodyr Huos
purpose the audit committee should act as the ipah
contact person for the internal and external auslito

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed lué
internal auditor's work program, and should be fsined
with internal audit's reports or periodic summaridhe
audit committee should also be informed of the w
program of the external auditor and should be fived
with report disclosing all relationships betweene
independent auditor and the company and its grdine.
committee should be timely furnished information aih
issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whether
company is following applicable provisions regaglithe
possibility for employees to report alleged sigrafit
irregularities in the company, by way of complairds
through anonymous submissions (normally to

independent member of the collegial body), and kh
ensure that there is a procedure established émoptionate
and independent investigation of these issues amd
appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its/éies to
the collegial body at least once in every six mentit the
time the yearly and half-yearly statements are @pgt.

ork

an

4.15. Every year the collegial body should condtiet
assessment of its activities. The assessment sliazllede
evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work angzaation
and ability to act as a group, evaluation of ea€hhe
collegial body member’'s and committee’s competezioe
work efficiency and assessment whether the colldmdy
has achieved its objectives. The collegial bodyushoat
least once a year, make public (as part of thenimdtion the
company annually discloses on its management gtes
and practices) respective information on its irdén
organization and working procedures, and specifyaty
material changes were made as a result of thesassat of
the collegial body of its own activities.

No

>

The assessment of the Company’s activities and fipso of
the Board of Directors’ activities is performed ke
shareholders of the Company in accordance witiptbeedure
prescribed by Law.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’scollegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and managementodies established in the company should ensurefiefent operation of these
bodies and decision-making and encourage active operation between the company’s bodies.
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5.1. The company’s supervisory and management bqdiées

(hereinafter in this Principle the concept ‘collEgbodies’
covers both the collegial bodies of supervision dhd
collegial bodies of management) should be chairgd
chairpersons of these bodies. The chairpersoncoflagial
body is responsible for proper convocation of tb#egial
body meetings. The chairperson should ensure

information about the meeting being convened arxd
agenda are communicated to all members of the bbuy.
chairperson of a collegial body should ensure gmyate

conducting of the meetings of the collegial bodyeT
chairperson should ensure order and working atneregh

during the meetin

that

The activities of the board of directors are retpdaby
the Regulations of operation of the board of doext
The meetings of the board of directors are cardet
under the guidance of the chairman of the boarg
directors. The CEO of the company helps to orga
the activities of the board of directors. The Comp
provides all the resources necessary for prg
organization of meetings of the Board of Directors.

1 of
Nize
;1
per

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the comiga
collegial bodies should be carried out accordingthe
schedule approved in advance at certain intervalsme.

ny’es

Each company is free to decide how often to convene

meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recomded that
these meetings should be convened at such intewhish
would guarantee an interrupted resolution of theewesal

corporate governance issues. Meetings of the coyipan

supervisory board should be convened at least amae
quarter, and the company’s board should meet at teece
a month?.

To secure the uninterrupted resolution of the disle
Company's governance issues, the meetings of
Board of Directors are convened at least once
quarter. Every year at the last meeting of the Badr
Directors, the Board of Directors adopts the tiralel¢
of meetings of the Board of Directors for the ngadr.

the
per

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notifadzbut
the meeting being convened in advance in orderltova]
sufficient time for proper preparation for the ieswon the|
agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful disicensand
adoption of appropriate decisions. Alongside witd hotice
about the meeting being convened, all the docum
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the meshiogld be
submitted to the members of the collegial body. @agendal
of the meeting should not be changed or supplerde
during the meeting, unless all members of the gi@lebody
are present or certain issues of great importancéhé
company require immediate resolution.

Yes

ents

Regulations of operation of the Board of Direct
provide for that the members of the Board of Divext
receive information about the meeting being conder
the agenda of the meeting and all material reletar
the issues on the agenda no later than 10 workayg
prior to the meeting of the Board of Directors.

5.4. In order to co-ordinate operation of the comym
collegial bodies and ensure effective decision-mgk
process, chairpersons of the company’s collegididsoof
supervision and management should closely co-opdrat
co-coordinating dates of the meetings, their agenalad
resolving other issues of corporate governance. héesnof
the company’s board should be free to attend mg=tof
the company’s supervisory board, especially wheseigs
concerning removal of the board members, theiilitgtor

remuneration are discussed.

Not
i applicable

A Supervisory Board is not formed at the Company

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholdes and shareholder rights

pIs

ne

g =

12 The frequency of meetings of the collegial bodgved for in the recommendation must be appliethimse cases when both
additional collegial bodies are formed at the comypahe board and the supervisory board. In thetesely one additional collegial
body is formed in the company, the frequency ofriesetings may be as established for the supervisoayd, i.e. at least once in a

quarter.
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The corporate governance framework should ensure thequitable treatment of all shareholders, includig minority and foreign
shareholders. The corporate governance framework stuld protect the rights of the shareholders.

6.1. It is recommended that the company’s capitaukl
consist only of the shares that grant the sametsrigh
voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to tikir
holders.

Yes

The Company's authorized capital consists of ongirja

registered shares which grant to all the Compa
shareholders the same rights.

ny‘s

6.2. It is recommended that investors should hacess to

the information concerning the rights attachedh® shares

of the new issue or those issued earlier in adyanee
before they purchase shares.

Yes

6.3. Transactions that are important to the compan its
shareholders, such as transfer, investment, anlgglef the
company’s assets or any other type of encumbramoeld
be subject to approval of the general
meeting®® All shareholders should be furnished with eq
opportunity to familiarize with and participate ithe
decision-making process when significant corporssees,
including approval of transactions referred to ahoare
discussed.

shareholders

No

ual

The competence of the Company's General Meeting
Board of Directors is regulated by the Law
Companies of the RL and the Company's bylaws

and
on
In

accordance with the Company's bylaws, decisiong on

entering into important transactions are adoptedhiay

Board of Directors.

6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a geneyes

shareholders’ meeting should ensure equal opptigarior
the shareholders to effectively participate at theetings
and should not prejudice the rights and interestdshe
shareholders. The venue, date, and time of thelsblaters’
meeting should not hinder wide attendance of

shareholders.

the

Procedures for convening and conducting the General

Shareholder's Meeting are regulated by the Law
Companies of the RL and the Company's byla
Shareholders are provided with an equal opportunit
participate at the meeting and to exercise theipgrty
and non-property rights.

on
WS.

<

13 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithugi@éficial Gazette 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutimmeerning
the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or aitipmisof the long-terms assets accounting for mihv@n 1/20 of the company’s
authorised capital to the competence of the gesbakeholders’ meeting. However, transactionsdt@atmportant and material for the
company’s activity should be considered and appmtdwe the general shareholders’ meeting. The LawCompanies contains no
prohibition to this effect either. Yet, in order thtb encumber the company’s activity and escapeuareasonably frequent
consideration of transactions at the meetings, eones are free to establish their own criteria afterial transactions, which are
subject to the approval of the meeting. While dihing these criteria of material transactionanpanies may follow the criteria set
out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Aetig#l of the Law on Companies or derogate from timewew of the specific nature of
their operation and their attempt to ensure uniapged, efficient functioning of the company.
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6.5. If is possible, in order to ensure sharehaldiring
abroad the right to access to the information, st

recommended that documents on the course of theralgn
shareholders’ meeting should be placed on the gybli

accessible website of the company not only in lathian
language, but in English and /or other foreign leaggs in
advance. It is recommended that the minutes ofyémeral
shareholders’ meeting after signing them and/orptetb
resolutions should be also placed on the publictessible

website of the company. Seeking to ensure the rajht

foreigners to familiarize with the information, wiever

feasible, documents referred to in this recommeondt

should be published in Lithuanian, English and/tieo
foreign languages. Documents referred to in
recommendation may be published on the publ
accessible website of the company to the extent
publishing of these documents is not detrimentaltite
company or the company’s commercial secrets are
revealed.

Yes

his
cly
tha

not

The right of shareholders living abroad to acces$ t

information is ensured on the Company's web
www.ambergrid.It and through the informational gyst

of the NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange, in

Lithuanian and English, by publishing in advance
date and venue of the General Meeting, the recate

Site

th
d

of the meeting, the agenda of the meeting and draft

resolutions. Upon the General Meeting, the resohst
adopted are published in the same manner.

6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the dppiy
to vote in the general shareholders’ meeting isq@eand in
absentia. Shareholders should not be prevented ¥atimg
in writing in advance by completing the generalingt
ballot.

Yes

The Company's shareholders may exercise their ty
participate in the General Meeting both in persod ia

absentia provided that the proxy has the due pafe

attorney or provided that the proxy is a party he
agreement on the cession of the voting right.
Company also provides its shareholders with thiet tigy
vote in writing in advance.

nt

-

The

6.7. With a view to increasing the shareholde
opportunities to participate effectively at sharleecs’
meetings, the companies are recommended to expndf
modern technologies by allowing the shareholders
participate and vote in general meetings via ebeatr
means of communication. In such cases security|
transmitted information and a possibility to idéntithe
identity of the participating and voting person wslido be
guaranteed. Moreover, companies could furnish
shareholders, especially shareholders living ahraitt the
opportunity to watch shareholder meetings by meain
modern technologies.

r&lot
applicable

U]

to

of

ts

Given the Company’s shareholders’ structure and vidlel
Regulations for Organizing the General Meetings
Shareholders, there is no need to implement anytiawial
expensive IT systems.

of

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encouragemembers of the corporate bodies to avoid conflictsf interest and assure
transparent and effective mechanism of disclosuref @onflicts of interest regarding members of the aporate bodies.
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7.1. Any member of the company’s supervisory 3
management body should avoid a situation, in whisther
personal interests are in conflict or may be inflactnwith
the company’s interests. In case such a situaitboctur, a
member of the company’s supervisory and manage
body should, within reasonable time, inform othenmbers
of the same collegial body or the company’s bodt tias
elected him/her, or to the company’s shareholdbuaa
situation of a conflict of interest, indicate thature of the
conflict and value, where possible.

ndes

nent

7.2. Any member of the company’s supervisory 3
management body may not mix the company’s asdets|
use of which has not been mutually agreed uponh

his/her personal assets or use them or the infmathich

he/she learns by virtue of his/her position as anber of a
corporate body for his/her personal benefit ortfer benefit
of any third person without a prior agreement &f gieneral
shareholders’ meeting or any other corporate b
authorized by the meeting.

ndes
t

ody

7.3. Any member of the company's supervisory &
management body may conclude a transaction with
company, a member of a corporate body of whichheeis.
Such a transaction (except insignificant ones dau¢héir
low value or concluded when carrying out routi
operations in the company under usual conditions3trbe
immediately reported in writing or orally, by redang this
in the minutes of the meeting, to other memberthefsame|
corporate body or to the corporate body that hasted
him/her or to the company’s shareholders. Transast
specified in this recommendation are also subjexrt
recommendation 4.

andes
the

The members of the Board of Directors follow t
provisions indicated in this recommendation. T
Company is not aware of events when the pers
interests of the members of the Board of Direct
would be in conflict with the Company's interests
Prior to starting act as the member of the Boarg
Directors, each member of the Board of Direct]
entered in the confidentiality agreement.

he
he

onal
ors

of
ors

7.4. Any member of the company’s supervisory 3
management body should abstain from voting wi
decisions concerning transactions or other isstipgrgonal
or business interest are voted on.

ndes
nen

The regulations of operation of the Board of Dicest
provide for that the member of the Board of Direstor
his proxy should abstain from voting when decisi
concerning his activity in the Board of Directonshis
responsibility is voted at the meeting of the Boafd
Directors.

DNS

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revsion and disclosure of directors’ remuneration estblished in the company
should prevent potential conflicts of interest andabuse in determining remuneration of directors, inaddition it should ensure
publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneation policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement ef
company’s remuneration policy (hereinafter 1t
remuneration statement) which should be clear asilye
understandable. This remuneration statement shbelg
published as a part of the company’s annual statemme
well as posted on the company’s website.

tho
he

The Company's remuneration policy is not publishsg
this is not provided for by the laws of the Repaluif

Lithuania, moreover, it is the Company's internada
confidential document. The Company's remunerat
policy is formed with due regard for the results
analysis of the situation in the labour market lo¢
country. The remuneration of the members of

Company’s management bodies is made public on
website of the Company.

ion
of

t

the
the

20



8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly focus
directors’ remuneration policy for the followingareand, if

appropriate, the subsequent years. The statementldsh

contain a summary of the implementation of
remuneration policy in the previous financial yeSpecial
attention should be given to any significant change
company’s remuneration policy as compared to tleeipus
financial year.

Please refer to comment under Item 8.1.

8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise iechhé
following information:

« Explanation of the relative importance of theiable and
non-variable components of directors’ remuneration;

« Sufficient information on performance criteriattentitles
directors to share options, shares or variable compts of
remuneration;

¢ An explanation how the choice of performanceeciit
contributes to the long-term interests of the campa

¢ An explanation of the methods, applied in order
determine whether performance criteria have belilidd;

« Sufficient information on deferment periods witgard to
variable components of remuneration;

No

—

« Sufficient information on the linkage between the

remuneration and performance;

* The main parameters and rationale for any anbaals
scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

« Sufficient information on the policy regardingrtenation
payments;

« Sufficient information with regard to vesting mets for
share-based remuneration, as referred to in pdiBt & this
Codée

« Sufficient information on the policy regardingeetion of
shares after vesting, as referred to in point 8fithis Cod¢
« Sufficient information on the composition of pegoups

of companies the remuneration policy of which hagrb

examined in relation to the establishment of
remuneration policy of the company concerned;

« A description of the main characteristics of deppentary
pension or early retirement schemes for directors;

« Remuneration statement should not include comialbrc,

sensitive informatiol

the

Please refer to comment under Iltem 8.1.

8.4. Remuneration statement should also summanmze
explain company’s policy regarding the terms of
contracts executed with executive directors and baesof

the management bodies. It should include, intem, &l

information on the duration of contracts with exie

&No

directors and members of the management bodies, the

applicable notice periods and details of provisidos
termination payments linked to early terminationdemn
contracts for executive directors and members of
management bodies.

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.1.
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8.5. Remuneration statement should also contaaildet
information on the entire amount of remuneratiog|usive
of other benefits, that was paid to individual dicgs over
the relevant financial year. This document shoisidat
least the information set out in items 8.5.1 ta8f6r each
person who has served as a director of the comgiaaryy
time during the relevant financial year.

8.5.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments
related information should be disclosed:

« The total amount of remuneration paid or dué t
director for services performed during the relevarancial
year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendance figes by
the annual general shareholders meeting;

« The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

* The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharand/or
bonus payments and the reasons why such bonus ptsym
and/or profit sharing were granted;

« If permissible by the law, any significant addital
remuneration paid to directors for special servingside
the scope of the usual functions of a director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each formecetive
director or member of the management body as &t r&su
his resignation from the office during the previdusncial
year,;

« Total estimated value of non-cash benefits careid as
remuneration, other than the items covered in tiove
points.

8.5.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acqhaees
options and/or all other share-incentive schenhes, t
following information should be disclosed:

« The number of share options offered or sharestegdaby
the company during the relevant financial year it
conditions of application;

« The number of shares options exercised duringelesant
financial year and, for each of them, the numbeshaires
involved and the exercise price or the value ofittierest in
the share incentive scheme at the end of the fiabyear;

« The number of share options unexercised at tHeoéthe
financial year; their exercise price, the exerdate and the
main conditions for the exercise of the rights;

« All changes in the terms and conditions of erghare
options occurring during the financial year.

8.5.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-
related information should be disclosed:

« When the pension scheme is a defined-benefitnsehe
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits unddrstheme
during the relevant financial year;

* When the pension scheme is defined-contributabrese,
detailed information on contributions paid or paedhy the
company in respect of that director during thevaié
financial year.

8.5.4. The statement should also state amountsitbat
company or any subsidiary company or entity inctLishe
the consolidated annual financial report of the pany has
paid to each person who has served as a directbein
company at any time during the relevant financesnjin
the form of loans, advance payments or guarantees,

D

including the amount outstanding and the interatst. r

No

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.1.
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8.6. Where the remuneration policy includes vasa
components of remuneration, companies should setsli
on the variable component(s). The non-variable corept
of remuneration should be sufficient to allow tlempany

to withhold variable components of remuneration mhe

performance criteria are not met.

bNot
applicable

At present, the Company’s remuneration proceduses dwt

provide for the payment of any variable remunerat

components.

8.7. Award of variable components of remuneratibautd
be subject to predetermined and measurable perfmen
criteria.

Not
aapplicable

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

8.8. Where a variable component of remuneration is
awarded, a major part of the variable componentlishioe
deferred for a minimum period of time. The partha
variable component subject to deferment should be
determined in relation to the relative weight of trariable
component compared to the non-variable component of
remuneration.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

8.9. Contractual arrangements with executive oragany
directors should include provisions that permit tbenpany
to reclaim variable components of remuneration thete
awarded on the basis of data which subsequentlyefrto
be manifestly misstated.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

io

8.10. Termination payments should not exceed afixe
amount or fixed number of years of annual remur@rat
which should, in general, not be higher than twargef the
non-variable component of remuneration or the ejait
thereof.

Yes

8.11. Termination payments should not be paid #
termination is due to inadequate performance

thYes

8.12. The information on preparatory and decisiakimg
processes, during which a policy of remuneration of
directors is being established, should also bdatisd.
Information should include data, if applicable,aurthorities
and composition of the remuneration committee, rsaamel
surnames of external consultants whose services laen
used in determination of the remuneration policyvel as
the role of shareholders’ annual general meeting.

No

Please refer to comments under Items 4.6 and 8.1.

8.13. Shares should not vest for at least threesyafter
their award.

Not
applicable

The Company does not apply any schemes of remimeiiat
the Company'’s shares.

8.14. Share options or any other right to acquigges or to
be remunerated on the basis of share price movement
should not be exercisable for at least three yaides their
award. Vesting of shares and the right to exeslisge
options or any other right to acquire shares dreto
remunerated on the basis of share price movensis)d
be subject to predetermined and measurable perfmena
criteria.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under Item 8.13
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8.15. After vesting, directors should retain a nemiif
shares, until the end of their mandate, subjettiemeed to
finance any costs related to acquisition of theeshalhe
number of shares to be retained should be fixed, fo
example, twice the value of total annual remunenatihe
non-variable plus the variable components).

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under Item 8.13.

8.16. Remuneration of non-executive or supervisory
directors should not include share options.

Not
applicable

Please refer to comment under Item 8.13.

8.17. Shareholders, in particular institutionalrshalders,
should be encouraged to attend general meetingewhe
appropriate and make considered use of their votes
regarding directors’ remuneration.

No

In accordance with the Bylaws of the Company, tinectbr’s
remuneration amount setting issues are resolveteéoBoard
of Directors.

8.18. Without prejudice to the role and organizatas the
relevant bodies responsible for setting directg
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any of
significant change in remuneration policy should
included into the agenda of the shareholders’ dngerzeral
meeting. Remuneration statement should be put dtiny
in shareholders’ annual general meeting. The vaig be
either mandatory or advisory.

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.17.

8.19. Schemes anticipating remuneration of dirsdtor
shares, share options or any other right to puechhares or
be remunerated on the basis of share price movement
should be subject to the prior approval of shaméra!
annual general meeting by way of a resolution gadheir
adoption. The approval of scheme should be relatddthe
scheme itself and not to the grant of such shasedba
benefits under that scheme to individual directik.
significant changes in scheme provisions shoulad laés
subject to shareholders’ approval prior to thewgwn; the
approval decision should be made in shareholdersial
general meeting. In such case shareholders sheuld b
notified on all terms of suggested changes andget
explanatiol on the impact of the suggested char

8.20. The following issues should be subject taayg by
the shareholders’ annual general meeting:

« Grant of share-based schemes, including sharenspto
directors;

» Determination of maximum number of shares andhmai
conditions of share granting;

« The term within which options can be exercised;

« The conditions for any subsequent change in xleecise
of the options, if permissible by law;

« All other long-term incentive schemes for whidtedtors
are eligible and which are not available to othmplyees
of the company under similar terms. Annual general
meeting should also set the deadline within whiehiiody
responsible for remuneration of directors may award
compensations listed in this article to individdakctors.

No

Not
applicable

At present, the Company does not have such remntiore
schemes.

The said issues were not discussed at the Geneting of
Shareholders, since such discussion is not proviatealy the
Bylaws of the Company.
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8.21. Should national law or company’s Articles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangermeder
which any rights are granted to subscribe to shatrasprice
lower than the market value of the share prevaiinghe
day of the price determination, or the averagdefrharket
values over a number of days preceding the date Wiee
exercise price is determined, should also be sttyebe
shareholders’ approval.

Not
applicable

8.22. Provisions of Articles 8.19 and 8.20 shouwddbre
applicable to schemes allowing for participatiomien
similar conditions to company’s employees or empésyof
any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible
participate in the scheme and which has been apgriov
the shareholders’ annual general meeting.

Not
applicable

8.23. Prior to the annual general meeting thattisnded to
consider decision stipulated in Article 8.19, thargholders|
must be provided an opportunity to familiarize wihaft

resolution and project-related notice (the docusehiould
be posted on the company’s website). The noticeildh
contain the full text of the share-based remunana
schemes or a description of their key terms, as agefull

names of the participants in the schemes. Notioaldtelso
specify the relationship of the schemes and theratlv
remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resmotmust
have a clear reference to the scheme itself dre@timmary|
of its key terms. Shareholders must also be predentth

information on how the company intends to providethe
shares required to meet its obligations under iteer
schemes. It should be clearly stated whether tmepaay
intends to buy shares in the market, hold the sharg
reserve or issue new ones. There should also benmary
on scheme-related expenses the company will sdtferto
the anticipated application of the scheme. All infation

given in this article must be posted on the comjzar
website.

Not
applicable

ti

1%

ny

The said issues were not discussed at the Gemdeakting of
Shareholders, it is not provided for by the Bylaufsthe
Company.

Please refer to comment under ltem 8.6.

Please refer to comment under Item 8.19.

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporategovernance

The corporate governance framework should recognizthe rights of stakeholders as established by lawnd encourage active co-
operation between companies and stakeholders in @tng the company value, jobs and financial sustaability. For the purposes of
this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includesnvestors, employees, creditors, suppliers, clientlocal community and other

persons having certain interest in the company corecned.

9.1. The corporate governance framework shouldrashat
the rights of stakeholders that are protected hy tae
respected.

Yes

The compliance with this recommendation is ensumgdhe
meticulous supervision and control of the Compaihyisiness
activities by the state regulatory authorities #melassociated.
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9.2. The corporate governance framework shouldterea
conditions for the stakeholders to participate anporate
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Exasnple
mechanisms of stakeholder participation in cormorat
governance include: employee participation in aibopof
certain key decisions for the company; consultihg |t
employees on corporate governance and other importa
issues; employee participation in the company'sresha
capital; creditor involvement in governance in toatext of
the company’s insolvency, etc.

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corgorat
governance process, they should have access teamele
information

consumer organizations. The publicity of the Conypan
business activities creates conditions for the eltalder
participation in the corporate governance in acaocg with
the procedure established by Law and the Compa@wylaws
and Internal Regulations. The governing bodies albrthe
employees on the issues of corporate governanceotet
important issues; the participation of employees tire
Company’s share capital is not limited.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure #t timely and accurate disclosure is made on all nterial information
regarding the company, including the financial sit@ation, performance and governance of the company.
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10.1. The company should disclose information on:

« The financial and operating results of the compan

« Company objectives;

« Persons holding by the right of ownership or amtcol of

a block of shares in the company;

« Members of the company’s supervisory and manage
bodies, chief executive officer of the company ahdir

remuneration;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

« Transactions between the company and connectedrg
as well as transactions concluded outside the eonfrshe
company’s regular operations;

¢ Material issues regarding employees and o
stakeholders;

» Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommeénda
while the companies are encouraged not to limit$elves
to disclosure of the information specified in thss.

10.2. It is recommended to the company, which ésgarent
of other companies, that consolidated results efwinole
group to which the company belongs should be distiq
when information specified in item 1 of Recommeratat
10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on thefgssional
background, qualifications of the members of suigsery
and management bodies, chief executive officer haf
company should be disclosed as well as potentiaflicts
of interest that may have an effect on their deoisiwhen
information specified in item 4 of Recommendatiod.11
about the members of the company’s supervisory
management bodies is under disclosure. It is
recommended that information about the amount
remuneration received from the company and othasnme
should be disclosed with regard to members of
company’s supervisory and management bodies aref
executive officer as per Principle VIII.

10.4. It is recommended that information about finks
between the company and its stakeholders, inclu
employees, creditors, suppliers, local communisywell as
the company’s policy with regard to human resour
employee participation schemes in the company'ses
capital, etc. should be disclosed when informasipacified
in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclesur

Yes

her

t

—

and
Also
of

the
chi

ding

es
ha

The information indicated in the recommendation
published on the Company'‘s website www.ambergri
through the informational system of the NASDA
OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange and press releases.

is
.1t
Q

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a waat
neither shareholders nor investors are discriméhatéth

regard to the manner or scope of access to infawmal
Information should be disclosed to all simultandpuk is

recommended that notices about material eventsldhizu
announced before or after a trading session orViiméus

Stock Exchange, so that all the company’s sharehsland
investors should have equal access to the infoomatnd
make informed investing decisions.

Yes

it

The Company discloses information through
information disclosure system applied by the NASD

OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange, in Lithuanian and

English, in this way simultaneously providing
stakeholders. With access to information. Inforomat
that may affect the price of securities issued
Company is treated as confidential therefore keigt as
a secret information and is not disclosed unless
published through the informational system in
manner prescribed by laws.

the
AQ

all
i
by

the
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10.6. Channels for disseminating information shouMes
provide for fair, timely and cost-efficient or inagses
provided by the legal acts free of charge accesslevant
information by users. It is recommended that infation
technologies should be employed for wider dissetitinaof
information, for instance, by placing the infornaation the
company’s website. It is recommended that inforamati
should be published and placed on the company’'siteep
not only in Lithuanian, but also in English, andhemever
possible and necessary, in other languages as well.

The Company simultaneously and in the same s
discloses all the information designated to shddsme
and investors in Lithuanian and English through
informational system of the NASDAQ OMX Vilniu
Stock Exchange, and all information is publishedton
Company’'s website_ www.ambergrid.lt, in this w

tope

the

[

ensuring unbiased and inexpensive prompt access to

information.

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s anngabnts | Yes
and other periodical accounts prepared by the coypa
should be placed on the company's website. It| is
recommended that the company should announce
information about material events and changes énpifice
of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchange en th
company’s website too.

The Company follows this recommendation and
information has been placed on the Company’s websit

www.ambergrid.|t

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s aux

The mechanism of the selection of the company’staushould ensure independence of the firm of @wdi conclusion and opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s financiglarts and| Yes
interim reports should be conducted by an indepeinfilen
of auditors in order to provide an external andeotiye
opinion on the company’s financial statements

An independent Company of auditors conducts thé& afithe

Company and annual financial statements and asseélsee

conformity of the Annual Report with the financi&htements.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s supenmyis Yes
board and, where it is not set up, the companyardp
should propose a candidate firm of auditors to ghreral
shareholders’ meeting.

A candidate firm of auditors is proposed to the eyah
shareholders’ meeting by the Board of Directors.

11.3. It is recommended that the company shouldatie to| Yes
its shareholders the level of fees paid to the fifrauditors
for non-audit services rendered to the company.s Thi
information should be also known to the company’'s
supervisory board and, where it is not formed, the
company’s board upon their consideration which fiofmn
auditors to propose for the general shareholdeegtimg.

The audit Company will receive from the Company

remuneration for consultations on tax and businiesses
which do not contradict the independence requirésnas set
forth by the Law on Audit of the Republic of Lithuia and the|
normative acts of the Securities Commission of Regpublic
of Lithuania. On an annual basis the audit Compaaiyfies
the Audit Committee on any non-audit services reedi¢o the
Company.

28



